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27,999,364 30,653,099 36,106,594 44,639,018 34,126,392
107,458 148,059 143,959 64,340 185,168
(@) 2 3 (D) (95
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10,164,000 10,164,000 10,164,000 10,164,000 10,164,000
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1,234,777 1,377,794 1,498,135 1,564,142 1,743,854
104,585,612 | 116,699,152 | 126,892,035 | 132,482,827 | 147,704,434
16,806,845 18,513,506 20,362,315 23,237,498 24,133,403
1,423,539,772 | 1,568,093,958 | 1,724,688,081 | 1,968,216,081 | 2,044,099,234
10.290 11.482 12.484 13.035 14.532
871.563 972.525 1,057.395 1,104.065 1,230.860
¢ o 0.895 1.234 1.200 0.536 1.543
75.807 104.520 101.640 45.399 130.438
N 7.347 7.442 7.357 6.731 7.226
€9 8.703 10.746 9.609 4.113 10.618
(1,025,117)|  (1,306,329)|  (1,045,144) (558,559) (721,523)
(86,827,410)| (110,646,066)| (88,523,697)| (47,309,947)| (61,112,998)
(15,431) (3,757) (25,964) (43,163) (24,554)
(1,307,006) (318,218)|  (2,199,151)|  (3,655,906)|  (2,079,724)
1,110,014 1,324,138 1,205,087 1,123,095 2,279,129
94,018,186 | 112,154,489 | 102,070,869 95,126,147 | 193,042,226
1,268,572 1,282,624 1,416,603 1,937,976 3,471,028
107,448,048 | 108,638,253 | 119,986,274 | 164,146,567 | 293,996,072
655.62 639.70 717.04 851.95 864.16
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1,937,976 3,471,028
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17,502,873 16,764,701
1,567,432 1,597,285
1,562,206 254,303
4,284 4,284
41,426 42,664
23,849 23,508
42,067 35,014
- 9,125
1,385,201 2,148,232
24,067,314 24,904,144
1,533,155 1,234,558
16,136,283 16,851,185
3,827,271 3,619,525
211,415 778,641
12,577 -
611,642 496,864
89,262 103,909
45,087 41,950
22,466,692 23,126,632
1,600,622 1,777,512
120,000 120,000
1,480,622 1,657,512
1,600,622 1,777,512
2021 31 10,995,442,000 11,159,340,000
2020 9,823,487,000 8,869,243,000

592,483,000
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(758,992) (905,348)
434,558 267,163
169, 740 170,043
604,298 437,206
(189,127) 35,721
(27,370) 13,287
(164,036) (157,206)
(28,111) (32,089)
(30,840) (35,791)
(11,967) (8,559)
(36,202) (28,099)
28,122 31,622
144,767 256,092
(34,600) (79,202)
110,167 176,890
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- 1,634,682 - 1,634,682
1,937,976 - - 1,937,976
4,870,214 13,424,261 - 18,294,475

10,980,000 (10,980, 000) - -

- - 36,907 36,907

17,788,190 4,078,943 36,907 21,904,040
4,575,501 - - 4,575,501
4,221,561 - - 4,221,561

624,702 11,290,020 - 11,914,722
6,120,840 (6,120,840) - -
4,323,496 (4,323,496) - -

235,400 - 370,231 605,631

- 45,087 - 45,087
20,101,500 890,771 370,231 21,362,502
(2,313,310) 3,188,172 (333,324) 541,538
- 1,650,034 - 1,650,034
3,471,028 - - 3,471,028
- 554,000 - 554,000
4,120,742 14,128,960 - 18,249,702
12,614,500 (12,614,500) - -
44,600 - 44,164 88,764

20,250,870 3,718,494 44,164 24,013,528
4,115,458 - - 4,115,458
4,686,925 - - 4,686,925

873,992 11,290,268 - 12,164,260
8,895,756 (8,895,756) - -
3,037,596 (3,037,596) - -

12,100 - 486,306 498,406

- 41,950 - 41,950
21,621,827 (601,134) 486,306 21,506,999
(1,370,957) 4,319,628 (442,142) 2,506,529
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)

652,908 605,617

382,055 282,005

291,244 334,451

1,326,207 1,222,073

19,642 36,976

1,345,849 1,259,049

123,838 75,775

52 780 433 757

2021 31 12

12

2021 31

39
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38
131
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@
31
2020 2021
3a 765,942 64,875 751,126 63,620
391,487 33,159 406,690 34,447
3b 43,619 3,695 45,078 3,818
1,201,048 101,729 | 1,202,894 101,885
3a (350,005)|  (29,645)[ (457,563)|  (38,756)
8b (324,018)|  (27.444)| (342,422)|  (29,003)
(674,023)]  (57,090)( (799,985)  (67,759)
527,025 44,639 402,909 34,126
4 46,770 3,961 59,188 5,013
573,795 48,600 462,097 39,140
/C ) 9b (197,127)|  (16,697) 35,654 3,020
/C ) 9c (27,370) (2,318) 13,287 1,125
(164,036)|  (13.894)[ (157,206)|  (13,315)
5 (28,111) .,381)  (32,089) (2,718)
I (30,840) .612)|  (35,791) (3,031)
(11,967) (1,014) (8,559) (725)
(36,202) (3,066)|  (28,099) (2,380)
25 11,153 945 10,950 927
89,295 7,563 260,244 22,043
6 (24,955) @.114)  (75,076) (6,359)
64,340 5,450 185,168 15,684
15 1,667 141 (5,456) (462)
66,007 5,501 179,712 15,222
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2020 31 2021 31

2la 1,937,976 164,147 | 3,471,028 293,996
21b — — 554,000 46,924
8a | 18,035,325 | 1,527,592 | 18,052,552 | 1,529,051
8b 1,567,432 132,761 | 1,597,285 135,290
17 1,462,371 123,863 161,424 13,673
25 90,145 7,635 95,639 8,101
28 41,426 3,509 42,664 3,614
26 23,849 2,020 23,508 1,991
27 42,067 3,563 35,014 2,966
29 — — 11,525 976
23 36,907 3,126 88,764 7,518
23,237,498 | 1,968,216 | 24,133,403 | 2,044,099

10 4,575,501 387,545 | 4,115,458 348,579
11 16,136,283 | 1,366,743 | 16,851,185 | 1,427,295
17 211,415 17,907 778,641 65,951
29 10,177 862 — —
24a 605,631 51,297 498,406 42,215
24b 89,262 7,560 103,909 8,801
27 45,087 3,819 41,950 3,553
21,673,35% | 1,835,733 | 22,389,549 | 1,896,395
1,564,142 132,483 | 1,743,854 147,704

14 120,000 10,164 120,000 10,164
15 8,476 718 3,020 256
16 1,435,666 121,601 | 1,620,834 137,285
1,564,142 132,483 | 1,743,854 147,704
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(©)
2019 120,000 6,809 | 1,371,326 | 1,498,135
64,340 64,340
1,667 — 1,667
— 1,667 64,340 66,007
2020 31 120,000 8,476 | 1,435,666 | 1,564,142
2020 120,000 8,476 | 1,435,666 | 1,564,142
— — 185,168 185,168
— (5,456) — (5,456)
— (5,456)| 185,168 179,712
2021 31 120,000 3,020 | 1,620,834 | 1,743,854
2019 10,164 577 116,151 126,892
5,450 5,450
141 — 141
— 141 5,450 5,591
2020 31 10,164 718 121,601 132,483
2020 10,164 718 121,601 132,483
_ — 15,684 15,684
— (462) — (462)
— (462) 15,684 15,222
2021 31 10,164 256 137,285 147,704
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(O]
31
2020 2021
(1,427,580)[  (120,916)| (1,086,880)|  (92,059)
946,221 80,145 918,785 77,821
(997) (84) (282) (24)
391,487 33,159 406,690 34,447
(426,300)|  (36,108)[ (341,608)|  (28,934)
— — | (554,000)|  (46,924)
(41,390) (3,506)|  (64,228) (5,440)
(558,559)|  (47,310)[ (721,523)|  (61,113)
(25,062) .,123)|  (19,449) (1,647)
(21,503) @,821)|  (11,145) (944)
3,402 288 6,040 512
(43,163) (3,656)|  (24,554) (2,080)
16,101,255 | 1,363,776 | 27,073,742 | 2,293,146
(14,974,107)| (1,268,307)[(24,789,050)| (2,099,633)
(4,053) (343) (5,563) 71)
1,123,095 95,126 | 2,279,129 193,042
521,373 44,160 | 1,533,052 129,850
1,416,603 119,986 | 1,937,976 164,147
1,937,976 164,147 | 3,471,028 293,996
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®

2065 207
2021 15

@
2001

IFRS

1ASB IFRS
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()
20 50
©

¢ )

31
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¢ )

)

ASIC 2016/191

©) COVID-19

COVID-19

COVID-19

CoviD-19

2021 31

ECL COVID-19
20b
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2020 31 2021 31
@
945,461 918,943
69,096 72,795
(248,615) (240,612)
765,942 751,126
369,968 282,218
« ) 1,336,737 (2,069,790)
¢ ) (1,381,047) 2,217,217
23,203 26,722
1,144 1,196
350,005 457,563
(V)
37,710 39,795
5,909 5,283
43,619 45,078
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46 2020

2020 31 2021 31
16,112 37,101
15,797 8,989
13,449 11,720
1,412 1,378
46,770 59,188
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24
2020 31 2021 31
6,553 7,593
1,445 2,257
2,183 1,918
1,995 2,010
1,966 108
14,142 13,886
13,969 15,229
— 2,974
13,969 18,203
28,111 32,089
26 28
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oOoOooodn

2020 31 2021 3l
20,443 92,328
4,555 (21,702)
(43) 4,450
24,955 75,076
9,442 26,645
(13,997) (4,943)
(4,555) 21,702
89,295 260,244
26,789 78,073
(3,346) (3,285)
1,555 285
24,998 75,073
— (4,447)

43) 4,450
24,955 75,076
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2003

UIG 1052
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2020 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
) 265,382 60,962 157,062 483,406
26,487 11,223 — 37,710
4,995 931 an 5,909
12,084 14,956 3,618 30,658
— 16,118 6 16,112
308,948 104,190 160,657 573,795
(23,542) (20,595) — (44,137)
2021 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
) 268,880 61,480 27,471 357,831
27,383 12,412 — 39,795
3,810 1,606 (133) 5,283
8,426 12,450 1,211 22,087
— 37,126 25 37,101
308,499 125,074 28,524 462,007
198,905 87,395 — 286,300
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2020 31

( ) ( ) ( ) )
16,023,783 3,578,974 3,634,741 23,237,498

2021 31

( ) ( ) ( ) )

16,095,973 3,553,863 4,483,567 24,133,403
2020 31 2021 31

/C ) (44,137) 286,300
11,153 10,950
99,239 (73,030)
23,040 36,024
89,295 260,244
(24,955) (75,076)
64,340 185,168
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2020 31 2021 31
@
2,969,845 2,349,059
15,084,470 15,820,333
605,779 512,032
914,450 875,646
19,574,544 19,557,070
(1,280,069) (1,307,368)
( ) 18,294,475 18,249,702
9a (259,150) (197,150)
18,035,325 18,052,552
( )
12 7,388,465 6,752,618
12 10,906,010 11,497,084
18,294,475 18,249,702
2020 31 2021 31
282,677 265,749
241,169 227,548
191,616 182,742
135,294 129,116
46,741 47,228
16,953 23,263
914,450 875,646
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2020 31 2021 31
2,435,076 2,534,928
9c (67,250) (52,750)
(800,394) (884,893)
1,567,432 1,597,285
296,576 303,342
213,027 198,279
139,254 130,839
68,100 64,180
30,133 24,683
16,626 13,196
763,716 734,519
1,414,487 1,567,432
761,743 598,053
(257,410) (240,278)
(324,018) (342,422)
(27,370) 14,500
1,567,432 1,597,285
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(

)

2021

31

10,249,000
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17,748,000



2020

3,827,271,000
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OooooOodd
2020 31 2021 31
(312,132) (310,479)
51,836 50,097
1,540,365 1,567,750
1,280,069 1,307,368
AASB
AASB 10
3,619,525,000
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OooooOodd
2020 31 2021 31
@
124,000 259,150
(77,847) (51,996)
« )/ 212,997 (10,004)
* 259,150 197,150
®
(15,870) (25,650)
« ) 212,997 (10,004)
« 197,127 (35,654)
©
39,880 67,250
« — (1,213)
« 27,370 (13,287)
67,250 52,750
* 2021 31 AASB 9,400,000 2020
19,400,000
2021 31
46,036,000 2020 73,492,000
20
12 ECL ECL
PD
EAD LGD
ECL
ECL ECL
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CovID-19
2020 31
31
2021 31
31

ECL

ECL
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oOoOooodn

ECL ECL

12 ECL  ( ) ( )

( ) ( ) ) )
40,896 40,173 19,931 101,000

3,127 (1,999) (1,128) —
34,068 27,946 76,908 138,922
22 890 22 934
24,704 18,236 4,248 47,188
(5.284) (6.195) (3.,926) (15,405)
— — (69,339) (69,339)
97,533 79,051 26,716 203,300

ECL ECL

12 ECL  ( ) ( )

( ) ( ) ) )
97,533 79,051 26,716 203,300
39,144 (34,162) (4,982) —

(43,781) (3,659) 47,065 (375)
26,651 3,791 1,206 31,648
(15,419) (9,267) (3,187) (27,873)

— — (50, 400) (50,400)
104,128 35,754 16,418 156,300
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oOoOooodn

ECL ECL
( ) ( )
2020 31
( ) ( ) )
12,789 2,211 15,000
289 (289) —
11,584 9,323 20,907
(7,738) 1) (7,829)
ECL 18,865 500 19,365
(2,293) (192) (2,485)
— (8,508) (8,508)
31 33,496 2,954 36,450
ECL ECL
( ) ( )
2021 31
( ) ( ) )
33,496 2,954 36,450
705 (705) —
(10,222) 2,637 (7,585)
ECL 7,960 503 8,463
(4,142) (140) (4,282)
— (1,596) (1,596)
31 27,797 3,653 31,450
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ECL ECL
12 ECL  ( ) ( )
2020 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
14,639,799 714,111 59,922 15,413,832
(204,296) 162,183 42,113 —
(2,108,907) (102,168) 29,536 (2,181,539)
ECL 5,029,608 151,460 9,796 5,190,864
(1,957,404) (138,901) (11,030)  (2,107,335)
— — (69,339) (69,339)
31 15,398,800 786,685 60,998 16,246,483
ECL ECL
12 ECL  ( ) ( )
2021 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
15,398,800 786,685 60,998 16,246,483
185,003 (203,706) 18,703 —
(2,923,255) (70,576) 16,083 (2,977,748)
ECL 5,340,643 55,976 4,375 5,400,994
(2,266,719) (84,571) (6,366)  (2,357,656)
— — (50,400) (50,400)
31 15,734,472 483,808 43,393 16,261,673
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2020 31
31
2021 31
31
ECL
CovID-19

ECL

ECL

ECL
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oOoOooodn

ECL ECL
( ) ( )
( ) ( ) ( )
1,772,585 13,595 1,786,180
(4,427) 4,427 —
(341,258) (3,170) (344,428)
961,267 2,030 963,297
(348,111) (438) (348,549)
— (8,508) (8,508)
2,040,056 7,936 2,047,992
ECL ECL
) «(
( ) ( ) ( )
2,040,056 7,936 2,047,992
(7.141) 7,141 —
(369, 610) (2.,897) (372,507)
754,025 2,547 756,572
(441,646) (786) (442,432)
— (1,596) (1,596)
1,975,684 12,345 1,988,029
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CovID-19

433,745,000 COVID-19

ECL
2021 31 204,713,000 12 ECL

ECL
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10
2020 31 2021 31
4,575,501 4,115,458
4,575,501 4,115,458
1,939,496 2,524,735
2,636,005 1,590,723
4,575,501 4,115,458
2021 31 2,880,900,000
2020 3,042,346,000
2021 31 2,880,900,000
2020 3,042,346,000 2021 31
738,625,000 2020 784,925,000 2021 31
3,619,525,000 2020 3,827,271,000

2021 31 672,000 2020 1,372,000
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2020 31 2021 31
4,221,561 4,686,925
11,914,722 12,164,260
16,136,283 16,851,185
6,291,881 8,030,742
9,844,402 8,820,443
16,136,283 16,851,185
TFS 2000 14

TFS 2000
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2020 31 2021 31
3,827,271 3,619,525
3,042,346 2,880,900
784,925 738,625
4,146,309 3,890,494
3,068,623 2,903,041
1,077,686 987,453
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oOoOooodn
2020 31 2021 31
33,977,438 29,858,365
15,000 15,000
4,590,000 4,590,000
1,210,000 1,210,000
17,740,565 18,130,381
3,042,346 2,880,900
784,925 738,625
16,236,873 11,727,984
15,000 15,000
1,547,654 1,709,100
425,075 471,375
24,074,833,000 2020 27,075,681,000
2,021,967,000 2020 1,971,225,000
400,000,000 2020 400,000,000 )
2021 31
1,313,111,000 2020 1,641,497,000 )
2,048,454,000 2020 2,889,035,000
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TFS
364
364
11 2024 11
50
2021
2021 31

TFS
2000
TFS
2001
( MCF )
MCF 2020 11

50
31

15,000,000 2020
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2000 14
TFS
TFS
TFS
TFS
30 TFS
TFS
2021 11

2019 11 2022

50
15,000,000



14

15

2021

31

31

120,000,000
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2020 31 2021 31
120,000 120,000
2020 31 2021 31
6,809 8,476
1,667 (5,456)
8,476 3,020
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2020 31 2021 31

1,371,326 1,435,666

64,340 185,168
1,435,666 1,620,834

2003
2021 31 2020 31
43.55 2020
2021 31 2021 30
52,265,000
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17

2020 31 2021 31
98,594 86,161
1,207,576 40,559
162,058 31,794
1,468,228 158,514
/C )
oA (5,857) 2,910
1,462,371 161,424
211,025 128,682
390 625,501
— 24,458
211,415 778,641
397,734 65,140
30,966 93,317
1,064,637 96,284
180,449 685,324
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CCR
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OooooOodd
2020 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

— 162,058 — 162,058

— 98,594 — 98,594

— 1,207,576 — 1,207,576

CVA — (5.857) — (5.857)

— 1,462,371 — 1,462,371

— 211,025 — 211,025

— 390 — 390

— 211,415 — 211,415

2021 31

( ) ) ) )

— 31,794 — 31,794

— 86,161 — 86,161

— 40,559 — 40,559

CVA — 2,910 — 2,910
— 161,424 — 161,424

— 24,458 — 24,458

— 128,682 — 128,682

— 625,501 — 625,501

— 778,641 — 778,641
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18
2020 31 2021 31

* 18,035,325 19,399,979 18,052,552 19,728,614

— — 554,000 554,995

18,035,325 19,399,979 18,606,552 20,283,609

4,575,501 4,619,460 4,115,458 4,145,305

16,136,283 16,609,067 16,851,185 17,403,150

20,711,784 21,228,527 20,966,643 21,548,455

* 2020 31 19,602,757,000
21,034,661,000

19

2021 31
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2020 31
(b)
(b)
@
(b)
(b)
@
2021 31
(b)
(b)
(b)
@
(b)
(b)
@
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( ) )« ) ) )« )
1,937,976 — 1,937,976 — — 1,937,976
18,035,325 — 18,035,325 — — 18,035,325
1,462,371 — 1,462,371  (209,739)  (235,400) 1,017,232
47,658 (10,751) 36,907 — — 36,907
21,483,330 (10,751) 21,472,579  (209,739)  (235,400) 21,027,440
4,575,501 — 4,575,501 — — 4,575,501
211,415 — 211,415  (209,739) — 1,676
616,382 (10,751) 605,631 —  (235,400) 370,231
5,403,298 (10,751) 5,392,547  (209,739)  (235,400) 4,947,408
3,471,028 — 3,471,028 — — 3,471,028
554,000 — 554,000 — — 554,000
18,052,552 — 18,052,552 — — 18,052,552
161,424 — 161,424  (140,732)  (12,100) 8,592
113,705 (24,941) 88,764 — (44,600) 44,164
22,352,709 (24,941) 22,327,768  (140,732)  (56,700) 22,130,336
4,115,458 — 4,115,458 — — 4,115,458
778,641 — 778,641  (140,732)  (44,600) 593,309
523,347 (24,941) 498,406 — (12,100) 486,306
5,417,446 (24,941) 5,392,505  (140,732)  (56,700) 5,195,073
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@
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ACL AFS
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TFA

SET

@
)

100

2021 31
2020 31
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2020 31 ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
— 1,634,682 — 1,634,682
1,937,976 — — 1,937,976
4,870,214 13,424,261 — 18,294,475
10,980,000 (10,980,000) — —
— — 36,907 36,907
17,788,190 4,078,943 36,907 21,904,040
4,575,501 — — 4,575,501
4,221,561 — — 4,221,561
624,702 11,290,020 — 11,914,722
6,120,840 (6,120,840) — —
4,323,496 (4,323,496) — —
235,400 — 370,231 605,631
_ 45,087 — 45,087
20,101,500 890,771 370,231 21,362,502
/C ) (2,313,310) 3,188,172 (333,324) 541,538
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2021 31 ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
— 1,650,034 — 1,650,034
3,471,028 — — 3,471,028
— 554,000 — 554,000
4,120,742 14,128,960 — 18,249,702
12,614,500 (12,614,500) — —
44,600 — 44,164 88,764
20,250,870 3,718,494 44,164 24,013,528
4,115,458 — — 4,115,458
4,686,925 — — 4,686,925
873,992 11,290,268 — 12,164,260
8,895,756 (8,895, 756) — —
3,037,596 (3,037,596) — —
12,100 — 486,306 498,406
— 41,950 — 41,950
21,621,827 (601,134) 486,306 21,506,999
C ) (1,370,957) 4,319,628 (442,142) 2,506,529
)
LIBOR IBOR
2021
31
)
12
2020 31 2021 31
/C ) (4,788) 2,135
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(b)

( ) ECL

12

PD LGD

LGD

EAD

PD

11

12
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oOoOooodn
EAD
12 ECL 12 PD LGD
EAD ECL PD LGD EAD
ECL
2021 31 ECL
a)
COVID-19
2021 GDP 3.9 2022 2.9
2021 6.4 2021
2021 2.22
b)
2021
GDP 2021 5.8 2022 4.8
2021 6.2 2021 10-12 5.9
2021 2.88
c)
GDP 2022
GDP 2021 0.5 2022
2.6
2021 10-12 7.8

2021
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2021 31 ECL
110,249,000 100,877,000 147,177,000
54,074,000 2020 31
ECL
147,760,000 165,700,000 256,880,000 2021 31
ECL 187,750,000 2020 239,750,000

)
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(D)
ECL ECL

12 ECL ) ( )

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2020 31
30 10,982,648 — — 10,982,648
31 60 — 223,326 — 223,326
61 90 — 36,723 — 36,723
0 ( ) — — 60,998 60,998

10,982,648 260,049 60,998 11,303,695
2021 31
30 11,715,802 — — 11,715,802
31 60 — 112,861 — 112,861
61 90 — 26,651 — 26,651
0 ( ) — — 43,392 43,392

11,715,802 139,512 43,392 11,898,706
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ECL ECL
12 ECL  ( ) ( )

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

2020 31
4,416,152 284,877 — 4,701,029
11 — 241,759 — 241,759
12 ( ) — — — —
4,416,152 526,636 — 4,942,788

2021 31
4,018,670 275,073 — 4,293,743
11 — 69,223 — 69,223
12 ( ) — — — —
4,018,670 344,296 — 4,362,966

ECL ECL
( ) «( )

( ) ( ) ( )

2020 31
30 448,817 — 448,817
31 60 7,940 — 7,940
61 90 2,362 — 2,362
0 ( ) — 4,475 4,475
459,119 4,475 463,594

2021 31
30 473,858 — 473,858
31 60 13,702 — 13,702
61 90 4,640 — 4,640
0 ( ) — 12,235 12,235
492,200 12,235 504,435
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ECL ECL
( ) ( )
( ) ( ) ( )
2020 31
965,319 — 965,319
11 615,618 — 615,618
12 — 3,461 3,461
1,580,937 3,461 1,584,398
2021 31
1,435,324 — 1,435,324
11 48,160 — 48,160
12 — 109 109
1,483,484 109 1,483,593
)
2020 31 2021 31

AA- 13 2

A+ 5 1

A 80 97

A- 2 —

100 100
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12
2020 31
( ) ) ( ) ) ( )
* 186,908 264,804 1,524,130 2,657,249 — 4,633,001
. 1,041,659 2,014,085 3,379,145 10,196,264 — 16,631,153
496,767 16,848 37,336 54,680 — 605,631
497 996 4,595 29,471 14,720 50,279
1,725,831 2,296,733 4,945,206 12,937,664 14,720 21,920,154
(726,539)  (814,366)  (380,113) — —  (1,921,018)
656,047 756,866 346,862 — — 1,759,775
673 (1,807)  (40,970)  (55,859) — (97,963)
17,317 798,229 1,006,318 5,916,821 — 7,738,685
(11,709)  (883,763) (1,161,514) (6,801,883) —  (8,858,869)
(64,211)  (144,841)  (229,417)  (940,921) —  (1,379,390)
1,661,620 2,151,892 4,715,789 11,996,743 14,720 20,540,764
12
2021 31
( ) ) ( ) ) ( )
192,519 251,120 2,103,517 1,601,027 — 4,148,183
2,154,387 2,176,347 3,821,821 8,367,097 805,423 17,325,075
382,075 11,279 48,628 56,424 — 498,406
517 1,037 5,747 27,299 11,513 46,113
2,729,498 2,439,783 5,979,713 10,051,847 816,936 22,017,777
(807,564) (1,361,781) (1,019,049) — —  (3,188,394)
802,468 1,372,182 1,005,860 — — 3,180,510
(1,608) (6,488)  (32,168)  (23,566) — (63,830)
1,053,781 3,888 1,037,718 6,372,859 967,740 9,435,986
(1,027,540) (3,362) (1,021,205) (5,798,516)  (805,423) (8,656,046)
19,537 4,439 (28,844) 550,777 162,317 708,226
2,749,035 2,444,222 5,950,869 10,602,624 979,253 22,726,003
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2020
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4,115,000

2020 31

2021 31

97,976
1,840,000

110,028
3,361,000

1,937,976

3,471,028

209,862,000

2020 31

2021 31

554,000

554,000

554,000

554,000
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2020 31 2021 31
64,340 185,168
(11,153) (10,950)
28,111 32,089
1,779 1,822
25,600 24,920
(16,112) (37,101)
2,525,623 (3,839,389)
(1,283,789) 1,834,876
135,150 (62,000)
27,370 (14,500)
(1,094,463) 44,773
(164,494) 20,909
— (11,525)

4,555 (10,177)
192,311 (124,641)
19,825 (50,458)
(20,990) 32,550
(992,222) 1,816,111
— (554,000)
(558,559) (721,523)
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(b)

AASB 16
2019 2020
31 31
18,191,045 1,127,148 1,341,073 52,518 — — 20,711,784
— (5,197) — — 35,315 14,969 45,087
AASB 16
2020 2021
31 31
20,711,784 2,284,692 (2,077,543) 47,710 — — 20,966,643
45,087 (5,563) — — — 2,426 41,950
23
2020 31 2021 31
24,300 24,393
11,913 63,519
694 852
36,907 88,764
12 36,088 87,769
12 819 995
36,907 88,764
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€Y
2020 31 2021 31
12,959 14,326
55,134 70,790
* 157,461 219,824
* 295,134 85,023
46,473 75,624
38,470 32,819
605,631 498,406
12 550,951 441,982
12 54,680 56,424
605,631 498,406
(b)
2020 31 2021 31
89,262 103,909
62,345,000 2020 51,007,000 12
2020 31 2021 31
60,294 63,428

AASB 15 2021 31 2020 31
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25
205(1) 2051 2020 2021
31 31
@
77,325 90,145 45.45 45.45
11,153 10,950
1,667 (5.456)
31 90,145 95,639
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2020 2021
31 31
®
15,503 15,332
(4,350) (4,382)
11,153 10,950
( ) ( )
©
2020 31
646,388 555,637 64,346 11,153
2021 31
536,657 440,411 59,319 10,950

20 50
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@
(b)
26
2020 31
( ) ( )
23,100 9,695 13,405
28,315 25,310 3,005
9,214 1,775 7,439
60,629 36,780 23,849
2021 31
( ) ( )
17,136 3,664 13,472
6,279 3,780 2,499
8,966 1,429 7,537
32,381 8,873 23,508
2020 31
( )
2,059 4,520 6,467 13,046
13,447 1,978 6,078 21,503
— — (3,111) (3,111)
(1,445) (2,183) (1,995) (5.623)
(162) 162 — —
(494) (1,472) — (1,966)
31 13,405 3,005 7,439 23,849
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31 )
13,405 3,005 7,439 23,849
2,316 1,520 7,309 11,145
— — (5,201) (5,201)
(2,257) (1,918) (2,010) (6,185)
8 — — 8
— (108) — (108)
13,472 2,499 7,537 23,508
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2020 31 2021 31
42,067 35,014
42,067 35,014
45,087 41,950
45,087 41,950
4,942 6,219
40,145 35,731
45,087 41,950

2,559,000 2020 31
48,620,000 35,315,000 AASB 16

2020 31 2021 31
5 6,553 7,593
( ) 3a 1,144 1,196
( ) 997 282

6,233,000

2020 5,197,000
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(b)

2020

2021

31

31
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IT
10
196,418 154,992 41,426
67,958 25,294 42,664
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2020 2021
31 31
30,333 41,426
25,062 19,449
(13,969) (15,229)
— ®
— (2,974)
41,426 42,664
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2020 31 2021 31
97,920 74,970
(39,599) 3,806
37,070 42,444
7,460 8,276
102,851 129,496
107,162 112,405
5,866 5,566
113,028 117,971
(10,177) 11,525
93,409 102,851
48,756 (22,950)
(45,724) 43,405
4,769 5,375
1,641 815
102,851 129,496
99,031 113,028
15,324 5,243
(1,327) (300)
113,028 117,971
(10,177) 11,525
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30
GST GST GST
100 2021 31 GST GST
91,045,000 2020 57,929,000
2003
31
2020 3 2021 31
2,141 —

32
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25

2020 31 2021 31

3,183,110 3,051,971

31

31
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©

2021

31

*1

2020

2020 31 2021 31
17,580 14,329
— (135)
(17,993) (20,803)
(106) (199)
(201) (194)
207 300

143 2,346
(21,365) (20,755)
2,030 2,429
40,786 40,522
116,675 179,302
— 4,828
9,59 10,383
840 —

31
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2021 31

2020 31 2021 31
1,937,976 3,471,028
— 554,000
17,502,873 16,764,701
1,567,432 1,597,285
1,562,206 254,303
4,284 4,284
41,426 42,664
23,849 23,508
42,067 35,014
— 9,125
1,385,201 2,148,232
24,067,314 24,904,144
1,533,155 1,234,558
16,136,283 16,851,185
3,827,271 3,619,525
211,415 778,641
12,577 —
611,642 496,864
89,262 103,909
45,087 41,950
22,466,692 23,126,632
1,600,622 1,777,512
120,000 120,000
1,480,622 1,657,512
1,600,622 1,777,512
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2021 31 10,995,442,000 11,159,340,000
2020 9,823,487,000 8,869,243,000 2020 31
592,483,000 271,777,000
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2021 31
2020 31 2021 31
758,588 721,757
391,487 406,690
43,475 44,064
1,193,550 1,172,511
(434,974) (562,926)
(324,018) (342,422)
(758,992) (905,348)
434,558 267,163
169,740 170,043
604,298 437,206
/C ) (189,127) 35,721
/( (27,370) 13,287
(164,036) (157,206)
(28,111) (32,089)
IT (30,840) (35,791)
(11,967) (8,559)
(36,202) (28,099)
28,122 31,622
144,767 256,092
(34,600) (79,202)
110,167 176,890
@
)
30
©
31
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2020 31 2021 31

652,908 605,617

382,055 282,005

291,244 334,451

1,326,207 1,222,073

19,642 36,976

1,345,849 1,259,049

123,838 75,775
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2020 31 2021 31
1,937,976 3,471,028
— 554,000
18,035,325 18,052,552
1,567,432 1,597,285
1,562,206 254,303
90,145 95,639
41,426 42,664
23,849 23,508
42,067 35,014

— 11,525

821,832 827,389
24,122,258 24,964,907
1,533,155 1,234,558
16,136,283 16,851,185
SPV 3,827,271 3,619,525
211,415 778,641
10,177 —
605,631 498,406
89,262 103,909
45,087 41,950
22,458,281 23,128,174
1,663,977 1,836,733
120,000 120,000
8,476 3,020
1,535,501 1,713,713
1,663,977 1,836,733
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IT

/(

/(

2020 31 2021 31
765,942 751,126
391,487 406,690

43,619 45,078
1,201,048 1,202,894
(438,432) (575,786)
(324,018) (342,422)
(762,450) (918,208)
438,598 284,686
169,671 170,455
608,269 455,141
(197,127) 35,654
(27,370) 13,287
(164,036) (157,206)
(28,111) (32,089)
(30, 840) (35,791)
(11,967) (8,559)
(36,202) (28,099)
11,153 10,950
123,769 253,288
(24,955) (75,076)
98,814 178,212
1,667 (5,456)
100, 481 172,756
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© 37 37
@
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TOYOTA FINAMCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABMN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Consolidated

MNote 2021 2020
£000 5000

Interest revenue Ja 751,126 TEh,542
Rental income an moter vehicles under operating lease 406,690 191,487
Fea incoma 3b A5,078 43,61%
Financing and similar revenue 1,202 8594 1,200,048
Interest expense and similar charges 3a [457,563) (350,005
Depreciation expense on motor vehicles under operating lease Eb [342.422) (324,018}
Financing expense and similar charges (799,985} (674,023}
Met financing revenus 407,909 527,025
Dther revenue 4 50,188 46,770
Net operating income 462,007 573,795
Credit impalrment reversal/{loss) Oh 35,654 (187,127}
Non-credit impairment reversalfiloss) 9e 13,287 27,370}
Emgloyee benelils expense {157,206} (164,036
Deprecianon, write-off and amortisation 5 [32.0B9) (28,111}
IT and communication expense [35,791) |30 40}
Sales and markeling expense [B,559) {11,567}
Other expenses [28,099) (36,202}
Share of net profits of associates accounted for wsing the equity
method 15 10,950 11,153
Profit before income tax 260,244 89,295
InComee 1ax cxpense 17 [75.076) |24,555]
Profit attributable to owners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited 185,168 64,340
Other comprehensive income
frevmas that anay be reclassified to profit of foss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign aperations 15 [5,45R) 1,667
Total camprebentive income attributable to ewners of Tayata
Finance Australia Limited 179,712 66,007

The above consalidated statement of comprefensive ingome should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.

5]

Classification: Protected [ &8 7t 8
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TOYOTA FINAMCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
Consolidated Consolidated
MNota 2021 2020
000 5000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11a 3471028 15931576
Term deposits ilb 554,000 .
Loans and recedvables Ha 18,052,552 18,035,325
Muotor vehickes under aperating lease Bhb 1,557,285 1,567,432
Derivative financial instruments 17 161424 1462371
Investment accounted for using the equity method 25 95,639 50,145
Intangible assets 8 42,664 41426
Property, plant and equipment 26 13,508 23.B4%
Right-of-use assats 7 35014 42,067
Deferred tax assets 29 11,525 .
Cther assets 13 BB, 764 36,507

Total actets 033403 13237438

Liabilities
D to banks and other financial institutions 10 4,115,458 4,575,501
Bonds and commercial paper 11 16,851,185 16,136,283
Derivative financial instruments 17 718641 211,415
Daferred tax liabilities 29 - 10,177
Cther Habilities 14a 498,406 B05.631
Contract liabilities 24b 103,909 89,262
Laase liabilities 27 41,950

Total liabilities 2,389,549

Net assets 1,743,854

Equity
Contributed equity 14 120,000 120,000
Heserves 15 3020 BATE
Retained eamings 16 1620834 1435866

Tatal equity 1,743,454 1,564,142

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.

Classification: Protected [ &8 7 i
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TOYOTA FINAMCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABMN 48 002 435 181

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Contributed Retained Total

equity Reserves earnings equity

S'000 000 £'000 5'000
Balance at 1 April 2020 120,000 B.A76 1435666 1564142
Prodit for the wiar = . 1R5, 168 185, 16E
Dther comprehendive iIncome = {3,456) - |54 56)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (5,456) 185,168 179,713
Balance at 31 March 2021 120,000 3,020 1,620,E34 1,743 BS54
Balance at 1 Apsil 2019 120,000 6,309 1,370,326 1,498,135
Predit for the year B4, 340 64,340
Dther comprehensive income 1,667 . 1,667
Tatal ecamprehendive income for the yead - 1,667 64,340 G6,007
Balance at 31 March 2020 120,000 B, 476 1,435,666 1,564 142

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
noles,

Classification: Protected [ &8 7t 8
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TOYOTA FINAMCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABMN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020
5'000 5000
Cash flows from operating activities
Ket eash outilaw fram lending and ather aperating activities {1,085 BRD) {1,427 580}
Intarost received 918,785 Q06,221
Short term lease payments (282) (99T
Rental income reteived A6, B30 391,487
Intéredt paid |341 50E) [426,300)
Term deposit | 554,000) .
Incorme taxes paid {64, 2 28| 41,350
Met cash outflow from operating activities |721,523) {558,559}
Cosh flows fron investing octivities
Payments for intangible assets {13,443 |25,062)
Payments {ar property, plant and equipment |11,245) (21,503}
Procieeds fram sale of property, plant and equipment 6,040 3.402
Met cash outflow from investing activities (24,554) {43,163}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds frarm barrowings 27,073,742 16,101,255
Repayments of borrowings (24,783,050 (14,574,107
Principal lease payments 15,563} |4.053]
Net cash inflow from financing activities 2,279,129 1,123,005
Nt incredse in cash and cash equivalents 1,533,052 521,373
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning af paricd 1,937,576 1416603
Cazh and cash equivalents at end of period 3,471,028 1,937,976

The abowe consolidated statemaent of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Classification: Protected [ &8 7t 8
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Basis of preparation

This section describes Toyota Finance Australia Limited’s [“the company” | significant accounting policies that relate to
the financial statements and notes of the accounts. If an accounting policy relates to a particular note, the applicable
policy Is contained within the relevant note. This section also shows new accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations and whether they are effective in the current fiscal year or later years.

1. Corporate information

These financial statements cover the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity comprising Toyora
Finance Australla Limited, as parent entity, and the entities [t controlled [together referred to as the “consolidated
entity”] at the end of, or during the financial year,

The company i limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia, its registered office and principal place of
business ks

Toyota Finance Australia Limited
Level 9, 207 Pacific Highway
5T LEONARDS, N5W, 2065

Adeseription of the nature of the consolidated entity's principal activities is included in the directors’ report on page 2,
which is not part af the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 15 June 2021, The company has the power to
amend and reissue the financial statements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policles
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated, Where necessary, comparative
information has been restated to conform to changes in presentation in the current year,

{a) Basls of preparation

These general purpose finandal statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corparations Act 2001, Teyota Finance
Australia Limited is a for-prafit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial staterments

Compliance with IFRS

The consalidated financial statements of Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its controlled entities also comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards | “IFRS®) as ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board ["1A58%).
Historicol cost converntion

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as medified by the revaluation of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (dervatives).

{ b} Principles of consolidation

i} Subsidiories

The eonsalidated financial statements Incorporate the assets and [Eabilities of all subsidiaries of Toyota Finance Australia
Uimited ["company”™ or “parent entity™) as at 31 March 2021 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended,

Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its controlled entities together are referred to in the financial statements as the
consofidated entity.

10
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Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{b) Principles of consalidation (centinued)

{i} Subsidiries [continued)

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities] over which the compary has control, The company contrals
an entity when the company Is exposed to, or has rights to, varlable returns from its invalrement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity, Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which cantrol is transferred to the consolidated entity. They are deconsofidated from
the date that the control ceases.

The acquisition methed of sccounting i wsed to accaunt for business combinations by the company.

Intercompany transactions, balances and wunrealised gains on transactions between consoldated entities are
eliminated, Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
paolicies adopted by the parent entity.

{ii) Associates

Associates are all entithes over which the company has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated finandal statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised a1 cost,

The company's share of its associates” post-acguisition profits or losses |s recognised in profit or loss, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves s recognised In other comprehensive Income. The cumulative post-acguisition
mavements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable from associates are
recognised in the consolidated financial staterments a5 a reduction against the carrying amaunt of the investment,

‘When the company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any ather
unsecured long-term receivables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations ar made payments on behalf of 15 associate.

Unrealised gains an transactions between the company and s associates are eliminated to the éstent of the
consolidated entity’s interest in associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impalrment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of assoclates have been changed where
necessary 1o ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the consobidated entity.

(¢} Foreign currency transtation

(i} Functional and presentation curmency

Hems incheded in the financial statements of cach of the consolidated entities are measured using the currency of the
primary econamic enviranmisnt in which the entity operates [the functional currency), The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Australian dollars, which i the company's functional and presentation currency.

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the translation of the net Investment in the foreign entity from
functional to presentation currency is recognised in other comprehenshve income.

{ii} Tronsoctions and balarces
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates af the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and

fram the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denaminated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(¢} Foreign currency transiation [continued)

{ii) Transoctions ond balances fcontinued)

Foreign exchange gaing and losses that relate to borrowings are presented In the income statement, within interest
eupense and simdar charges. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement on a
net basis within other revenue or other expenses,

{d} Rounding of amounts

The company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Legislative Instrument 2016/191 relating to the “rounding off” of amounts
in the financial statements. Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in accordance with the
Instrument to the nearest thowsand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

{e} Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic

The COVID-12 pandemic has increased the estimation uncertainty in the preparation of the consalidated financial

statements, The estimation uncertainty is associated with:

= The continued spread of COVID-19 has bed to disruption and velatility in the global capital markets and has had an
impact on the funding cost for the consolidated entity, The consolidated entity’s ability 1o access capital markets
during the period has not been adversely impacted.

= Continued spread of COVID-19 has caused an ecenomic slowdown and recession [which could adversely affect the
demand for vehicles and the demand for the company's financing and insurance preducts and increase the
company’s delinguencies, credit lasses and dealer defaults), and can cause disnuption in the supply chains of the
vehicles the company finances, or cause other unpredictable events, each of which could adversely affect the
company's business, results of aperations or financial condition,

The consalidated entity has applied accounting estimates in the consolidated financial statements based on forecasts
of economic conditions which reflact expectations and assumptions as at 31 March 2021 about future events that the
directors believe are reasonable in the circumstances. There is a considerable degree of judgement invelved in preparing
the forecasts. The underlying assumptions are also subject to uncertainties which are often outside the contrel of the
consolidated entity, Accordingly, actual economic conditions are likely to be different from those forecast since
anticipated events frequently do not occur as expected, and the effect of those differences may significantly impact
accounting estimates included in the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting estimates impacted by these forecasts and associated uncertainties are related to the
expected credit losses ("ECL*) calewlations. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the accounting estimates s

distussed in Notes 9 and 20b. Users to the financial statements should carcfully consider these discloswres in light of
the inherent uncertainty described above,
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Results for the year

This section provides further information and accounting poficles about individual line items in the consoldated
statement of comprehensive income, including:

interest revenue and expense

fee income on originated assets

other revenue

depreciation, write-off and amortisation

income tax expense

segment results

3. Financing revenue and expense and similar charges

Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020
$'000 £'000
(a) Interest revenue and expense
Interest revenue
Interest revenus 918,943 945,461
Fee income recognised using the effective interest rate method 72,195 59,096
Fee expense recognised using the effective interest rate method (240,612) |248,615)
Total interest revenue 751,126 765,942
Interest expense and similar charges
Interest expense 282,218 369,968
Net [gain} loss on translation of foreign currency debt {2,065, Foa) 1,336,737
Fair value loss (gain) on derivative financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss 2217 217 [1,381.047)
Transactian costs 26,722 23,203
Interast on lease liabiities 1,196 1,144
Total interest expense and similar charges 15?,553 354],005
|b] Fee income earned on originated assets
Admanistration and management fee 39,795 37710
Other fees 5.283 5,909
Total fee income as,078 3519

Revenue recognition

Revenuse is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or recelvable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are
net of direct sales costs and taxes,

The consolidated entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will fow to the consolidated entity and specific criterla have been met. Revenue is recognised
for the major business activities as follows:

{i} Term loans and term purchase

Interest income arising from term loans and term purchase are recognised over the period of the contract using the
effective interest rate method., Income denved from term loans and term purchases |s included in “interest revenue”,
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Results for the year (continued)

3. Financing revenue and expense and similar charges (continued)
{ii] Leased assets where the consolidated entity is the lessar

fa)} Finance leases

Interest income derived from finance leases = recognised over the period of the contract using the effective interest
rate methed. Income derived Trom finance leases is included i “interost Fevenue™,

{b) Operating leases

Lease rentals recelvable on operating leases are recognised on a systematic basis over the effective lease term. Income
derived from operating leases is included in “rental income on motar vehicles under operating lease”, Operating leases
had an average term of 46 months in the current period (2020; 45 months).

{iii} Fee income and expense

Fee income and expense are an integral part to the effective interest rate of the financial assets or liabdlities and are
included in the measurernent of the effective interest rate (Note 3a).

Revenue from administration and management fees are recognised over time as the services are proveded whilst other
fees are recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place (Note 3b).

4, Other revenue

Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Net gain on dispasal of leased and fived assets 3ran 15,112
Met insurance distribution revenue 8,989 157197
Net maintenance revenue 11,720 13,449
Other incoma 1,378 1,412
Total other revenue 5'5.1!8 46,770

Met insurance distripution revenue and net maintenance revenue are recognised as the refated services are performed.
Met maintenance revenue represents net income received for facilitating the provision of maintenance services on fleet
contFacts. The revenue is recognised a3 those services are provided. The company acts a3 an agent and as such presents
the revenwe received net of associated costs in the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income, Revenue received
in advance of the services being provided is presented as a contract liability wntil such point as the services have been
provided. Further information in relation to contract Habilities is presented in Note 24b.
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Results for the year (continued)
5. Depreciation, write-off and amortisation

Consolidated Consolidated

021 2020
§'000 000
Prafit before income tax includes the following specific expenses:
Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment
Right-of-use assets 7.5093 5,553
Leaschold improvements 2,257 1,445
Plant and egquipment 1,918 2,183
Motor vehicles 2,010 1,995
‘Wiite-off on property, plant and equipment 108 1,966
Total depredation and write off 13,885 14,142
Amortisation
Computer software development 15,229 13,969
Computer software write-off 2974 -
Total amortisation and write-off 18,203 13,969
Total depreciation, write off and amortisation 32,083 2E,111

Assets that are subject to depreciation, write-off and amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value bess costs Lo resell and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifisble cash inflows which are largely ndependent of
the cash inflows from other asset groups (cash generating units).

Refer to Notes 26 to 28 foe further infarmation on depreciation, write-off and amortisation.

b. Income tax expense

The income tax expense or credit for the period s the tax payable or receivable on the current period®s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to termporary differences and 1o uhused tax lodges

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses ondy it it i probahle that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and aisets are not recognised for termporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeabla future,
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Results for the year (continued)
6. Income tax expense [continued)

Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020
5'000 5000
Current tax 92,328 20,443
Deferred tax {21,702) 4,555
Under/(Excess) provision in prior year (4,450 143
Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations 75,076 24,955
Deferred income tax expense included in Income tax Expense comarises:
Increase in deferred tax assets 26,645 9,442
Increase in deferred tax labilities 14,943 (13,997)
21,702 14,555)
Numerical reconcilation of income tax expense o prima facie tax payable:
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 260,244 89,295
Prima facie tax payable @ 30% 78073 26,789
Tax elfect af amaunts which are nat deductible (taxable) in ealeulation
taxable income:
Share of net profit of associate {3,285) [3,348)
Sundry items 185 1,555
75073 24,998
Deferred income tax expense credit refating 1o price years (4,847) .
Under/[Excess) provision in prior year 4,450 _ fe3)
Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations 75,076 24,955

Deferred lax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the consolidated entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either (o setile on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and setthe the liability simultaneously,

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to iterms recognisad in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tas is also recognised in ather comprehensive income or
directhy in equity, respectively.

Tax consolidation legislation

The compary and its whally ewned Australisn contralled entities have implemented the tax consalidation lagislation
from 1 April 2003 in association with other Australian incorporated entities with comman ownership.

On adoption of the income tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the income tax consolidated group entered into
an income tax sharing agreement which, In the oginion of the directors, limits the joint and several liakility for Income
tax of the consolidated entity in the case of a default by the head entity, Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Lirmited,
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Results for the year (continued)

6. Income tax expense (continued)
Tax cansolidation legislation {continued)

As a consequence, the company Is no longer subject to income tax and does not recognise any current tax balances in
its own financial statements unless the head entity (Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited) s in default of its
obligations, or a default is probable, under the tax consolidation legislation, or the tax amounts retate Lo taxable income
imcurred prior to the implementation of the tax consolidation regime.,

The consolidated entity has also entered Into an income tax funding agreement under which the consolidated entity
fully compensates the head entity for any current income tax payable assumed and is compensated by the head entity
for any current income tax receivable. The funding amounts are determined by reference 1o the amounts recognised
im thie consalidated entity’s financial statements,

The amounts receivable/payable under the income tax funding agreement is due upon recaipt of the funding advice
fram the head entity, which & issued as soon as practicable after the end of each financal year. The head entity may
also require payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay income tax instalments.

Deferred tax balances are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with UIG 1052 Tax
Consolidation Accounting. Amounts receivable or payable under a tax funding agreement with the head entity are

recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as tax-related amounts receivable and
payable.
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Results for the year (continued)
7. Segment results

Management has determined the aperating segments based on reports reviewed by the board of directors that are
used to make strategic decisions. it categorises the operations of the business into two main business streams = retail
and fleet. Retail segment comprised of loans and leases to consumer and commercial customers including wholesale
finance consksting of loans and ballment fadlities to motor wehicle dealerships. Fleet segment comprised of loans and
leases to small businesses and fleet customers consisting of medium to large commercial chients and government bodies.
The company's business segments apoerate in Australia,

Comsolidated 2021
Reetail Flaat Unallocated Tatal
5'000 5000 5'000 5'000
et financing revenue [excloding fee income) 253;8:35 5-1,43:{: 27471 3-.5.]",351
Fee income
Fee income recognived over 2 period of time 27,383 12412 : 39,795
Fee income recegnised at a paint in time 3,810 1,606 [133) 3,283
Other revenue
Other revenue recognised at a point in time 8426 12,450 1,211 22,087
Net gainf{loss) on disposal of leased and fised assets . 37126 [25) 37101
Net operating income I08,493 125,074 28,524 462,097
Total reporting segment operating profit 198,905 A7.385 - 286,300
Consolidated 2020
Retall Fleet Unallocated Toral
5'000 5000 5'000 5000
et financing revenue [excluding fee income) 265,382 60,962 157.062 483 406
Fee income
Fee incame recognised over a period of time 26,487 11,223 . 7,710
Fee incame recogniced at a point in time 4,995 o931 (17) 5,909
Other revenue
Other revenue recognised at a point in time 12,084 14 556 3.618 10,658
Net gain/{loss) on disposal of leased and fixed assets . 16,118 (6] 16,112
Net operating incoms 108,948 104, 120 160,657 573,795
Total reparting segment operating loss 23,542) {20,545} - (44,137}
31 March 2021
Assets Retail Fleet Unallocated Total
5'000 5000 5'000 4°D00
Segment assets 16,095,973 3,553,863 4483567 24,133,403
31 March 2020
Assets Rermil Fleet Unallocated Total
5000 £'000 5'000 £'000
Segment assels 16,023,783 3.578974 3,634,741 23237498

The company's liabilities are primarily related to debt funding which are undertaken by the centralised treasury
function.
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Results for the year (continued)

7. Segment results (continued)

The consalidated entity's segment operating profit reconciles to consalidated profit attributable to owners as presented
in the financial statement as follows:

Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020

4°000 $'000
Total reporting segment operating profinf{loss) 246,300 [44,137)
Share of net profits of asseciates accounted for wsing the equity method 10,650 11,153
Fair value {boss)/gain [73,030) 0,239
Other unallocated net ncoma 36,024 23,040
Profit before income tax 260,244 £9,295
Income tax expanse [75,076) |24.955)
Profit attributable to ewners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited .13.5.16! él.,_]-lo

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker, The chiof operating decision maker who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments has been identified as the board of directors,
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Lending

This section focuses on the lending assets of the consolidated entity. Further infarmation is provided on the loans and
receivables, and impairment relating to these financing assets.

8. Financing assets

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Mote S'000 5'000

(8} Loans and receivables
Bailment stock 2,349 0549 2,569,845
Term laans 15,820,333 15,084,470
Tarm purchase 512,032 605,719
Fimance leases 875,646 914,450
Gross loans and receivables 19,557,070 15,574,544
Unearned income [1,307,368) (1,280,063
et loans and receivables (net of unearned incame) 18,249,702 18,294,475
Pravision for impairment of loans and recaivables O3 1197.150) |253,150)
Net loans and receivables 18,052,552 18,035,325
Maturity analysis (net of unearned income)
Current
Met loans and receivables maturing within 12 manths 6,752,618 7,388,465
Noa-Currant
et loans and receivables maturing beyond 12 months 11,497,084 10,506,010

18,248,702 18,294,475

The minimum lease payments recelvable on finance leases of vehicles are as follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£'000 5000

Future minimum lease receipts under finance leases
Maturing within 1 year 265,749 282,677
Maturing between 1 and 2 years 227,548 241,169
Maturing betwaan 1 and 3 years 182,742 191,616
Matwring betwien 3 and 4 years 128,116 135,294
Maturing between 4 and 5 years 47,228 a6, 741
Maturing beyond 5 years 23,263 16,953
875,646 914,450
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Lending (continued)
8. Financing assets [continued)
Concentration of exposures

The majority of the consolidated entity’s loans and recevables are provided to finance the purchase of motor vehicles
or motor dealership assets,

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note $'000 $°000

(b) Motor wehicles under operating lease
Qperating lease - At cost 2,534,928 2,435,078
Impairment loss % {52,750) |67,250)
Accurnulated depreciation [E&4,893) {800,394
Total motor wehicles under operating lease 1,597,285 1,567,432
Future minimum lease receipts
Maturing within 1 year 303,342 256,576
Maturing between 1 and 2 years 198,279 213,007
Maturing between 2 and 3 years 130,83% 139,254
Maturing between 3 and 4 years b4, 180 BB, 100
Maturing between 4 and 5 years 24,683 30,133
Maturing beyond 5 years 13,196 16,626

734,518 763,716
Movements in cost, accumulated depreciation and reserves
Balance a1 beginning of period, net of residual value 1,567,432 1,414,487
Additions 598,053 761,743
Dispasals [240,278) |257.410)
Depreciation expense (342,422} {324,018)
Impairment reversal/{loss) 14,500 [27,370)
Bakance at end of period, net of residual value 1,597,285 1,567,432

Recognition and derecognition

Financing assets are recognised on transaction settlement date — the date on which the consolidated entity becomes
party to an irmevecable financing arrangement. Financing assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assots not carried at fair value through profit or loss, Fingncial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the consolidated entity
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification

Loans and receivables are classified at amortised cost based an the following factars:

=  Thedr contractual terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and
Interest {*5PP1"] on the principal amount outstanding; and

#  They are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding them to coflect contractual cash
flows.
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Lending (continued)

8. Financing assets [continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement [continued)

Classificetion feontinwed)

SPPI; For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fairvalue of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of meney and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount gutstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e g lguidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as profit margin,

Business model: Factors considered by the consolidated entity in determining the business model for a group of asseis
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated
and reported 1o key management persannel and how risks are assessed and managed.

The conselidated entity classifies its financing assets into the following categories:

(i) Ballment stock

The consolidated entity provides dealer floor plan finance arrangements to motor dealers under which vehicles are
owned by the consolidated entity but held at the dealers’ premices as ballment stock. There i no unearned income on
badment stock.

Whilst the legal farm of the transactions is that the yvehicles are owned by the consolidated entity, the substance of the
transactions is that of secured loans to the dealers. Accordingly, the balances are disclosed as part of ‘loans and
receivables’ in the statement of financial position.

(i} Term Loans

Aterm loan is 3 financing agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risk and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an asset to the customer. Unearned finance income is the portion of charges written
inta finance receivable agreements which will be earned in the future.

{iii} Term Purchase

A term purchase Is a finandng agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the custemer. Unearned finance income is the portion of charges written
inta term purchase receivable agreements which will Be earned in the future,

{iv)Finance Lease

Afinance lease is a lease agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset from the lessor 1o the lessee, Unearned finance income is the portion of charges
written into finance receivable agreements which will be carmed in the futurne,

|v) Operating Lease

Motor vehicles under operating leases are included in financing assets. These are beases in which the terms of the lease
agreement do not substantially transfer the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee.

Motor vehicles under operating lease is inclusive of the carrying value of vehicles which ceased 1o be rented and are
hidd far sale amounting to 510,249,000 as a1 31 March 2021 (2020; $17,748.000).

Assets held under operating leases are depreciated on a systematic basis over the term of the lease to its estimated
residual value. Depreciation expense Is included within financing expense and similar charges.
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Lending (continued)

8. Financing assets [continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement [continued)
Subseguent measurement

Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The effective interest
mithod calculation includes the contractual terms of the koan, together with all fees and transaction costs,

Retall and whaolesale finance receivables form part of the loans and receivables in the balance sheet. Unearmed Income
Is brought to account over the life of the contracts on an effective interest method.

Modification

The consolidated entity sometimes renegaotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers.
When this happens, the consolidated entity assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the
original terms by considering, among others, the following factors:
# | the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to
amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.
Significant change of the loan term: and/or interest rates when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.
insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancemnents that significantly affect 1he credit risk associated with
the kboan,

If the terms are substantially different, the consolidated entity derecognises the original financial 2sset and recognises

a new asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset, If the terms are not substantially
different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition.

Concentration of exposures

Thie majority of the consolidated entity’s keans and receivables are provided to finance the purchase or lease of mator
wehicles or motor dealership assets.

Unearned income comprised of the following balances;

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

£'000 £'000
Net unamortised deferred revenue and expensas [310.479) {312.132)
Unearned interest income on finance leases 50,097 51,336
Unearned interest income om berm |loans 1,567,750 1,540,365
Total unearned income 1,307,368 1,280,069

Securitisation

Loans and recevables include a portion of the consolidated entity’s term boans and term purchases under securitisation
within special purpose entities. The terms of the transfer of these loans do not meet the criteria for derecognition under
AASE 9 and are therefore recognised an the consolidated entity's statement of financial position, AASB 10 defines
contral when an investor is expased or has rights to variable retums from its invelvement with the investee and has the
abdity to affect those returns through its power over the investee. The parent entity bears control over the spedial
purpose vehicles requiring consolidation in the financial statements,

As at the end of the reperting period, the carrying amount of transferred assets held by the special purpose entities
under securitisation was 53,619,525,000 (2020: 53,827,271,000).
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets

Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020
5000 5'000
|a) Provision for credit impairment of loans and receivables
Opening balance 259,150 124,000
Bad debts written off {51,906) |77.847)
|Decrease)fIncrease in impairment loss provision {10,004) 312 997
Closing balance* 197.150 250,150
b] Credit impairment loss
Recowvery of bad debts written off (25,650) (15,870}
|Decrease)/increase in impairment loss provision (10,004) 212997
Total impairment {gain)/loss [35,654) 197,127
() Non-credit impairment loss on motor vehicles under operating lease
Opening balance 67,250 39,830
Impairment [reversall/loss {1,213)
|Decrease)fIncrease in impairment loss provision {13,287} 27370
Clasing balance 52,750 67,250

* The balance &s at 31 kanch 2021 includes provision on puarasteed future value of 59,400,000 (2030: 519,400,000} which i rol calculated
unger AA58 9.

The contractual amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the year ended 31 March 2021 and
that are still subject 1o enforcement activity is $46,036,000 (F020: 573,492,000).

In addition to the information below further information on eredit risk can be found in Note 20,

Thit loss allewance recognised in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described balow:

*  Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financal instruments experiencing significant increases (or
decrenses) of eredit risk or becoming credit impaired in the period, and the cansequent “step up® [or “step down®)
between 12 month and [ifetime ECL;

o Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, a5 well as releases for financial
instruments derecognised in the period,

& Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD")
and loss given default ("LGD™) in the period, arising fram regular refreshing of inputs to modiels;

Discount unwind wathin ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL i measured on a present value basis;
Financial assets derecognised during the peried and write-offs of allowances related to assets that were written
off during the period;

=  Takes into consideration the economic condition outlook that reflects the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance between the beginning and the end of the annual period
due to these factors:

General approach (Retail & Wholesala)

Lifetima
ECL mot Litetime
12 meanih cradin- ECL greit-
Coraolidated 2001 ECL impalred mpaired Total
51000 000 5000 51000
Opening balsnce as a2 1 Apnl 57,553 o 26,716 100,50
Changes due to financial susets recognised b the opening Bafance:
- Trarsfers between stages 13,144 1ma,162] 14,983)
Remeasunement [T R 3] |5,655]) 47,065 1345
Closing £CL of new financial assets orignated 651 171 1,506 11648
Financhal asscts derccognised during the pened other than wene offs {15,015 1.267] [ERT ] [FERTE]
Wike-aifs - (50,4000 {50 A0CH
Balpncunt 11 Mrch 104,178 35754 16418 156300
Litetisng
ECLmot Litetime
12 manth credit- ECL oredit-
Comaolidated 2020 ECL impaired mpaired Tatal
5000 5000 S0dd 5'000
Opening balance as 22 1 Apeil 40,596 40173 19,531 101,000
Changes dus 1o linancul atsett recagnised o The ooning baanoe:
« Trarecfers bebween stages 3,127 |L,9%%] {1,028) -
- Rpmmedsunement 34 068 1T94E 76,908 1184927
Changes in model assumphions and methodaloges 3 B0 b 534
Closing ECL of rew finamcial assets orlginated 24,704 18236 4, 1B 4T, 188
Financial assets derscognised during the pencd other than weite-offy i5, 2843 |8,155] 13,828) {15, 40%)
Wirze-offs s . {69,339 {69,334)
Balance at 31 March 57,533 15051 26,716 203,300
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)

Simplified approach (Fleet)

Uetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

et credit- crodi-
Corsolidated 2031 impaired impained Tatal
47000 Y000 ' 000

Qpening baliste a8 1 1 Ageil 13,496 2,954 16,450
Changes dus to financial sisets npcagnived i The cpening Balince:
- Trarfery between s1aEeEs ] |705]
- Ritraiurement {io222) L.637 {7,585)
Closing ECL of nerw Mirurmelal asiets orlgrmed 7,960 503 451
Financial sssils dorboognited dufing the peded ather than wile-all 14,343] e §8,282)
Wity - |1, 556) {1,586)
Balance 21 i1 March 27,7497 3,653 31,450

Lifwtime ECL Eifetime ECL

et gredit wredd-
Consolidated 2020 inpaired impaed Total

som om0 so0

Opening balsvee ap 38 1 Agril 12,789 2211 18,000
Changes due ta financial ssets recognised in the opening balanoe:
- Traewlors hobaeen dages ] | 2]
- Remeasurement 11,584 9,323 20,507
Changes in modal i s maEhodakog |7, 73] (3] 7,829
Closing ECL of mow fengmcizl assets oripnated 12,865 SO0 19,365
Finanial assets denecognised during tho pericd other than weiieaffs 12.293] 14%21 {2.485)
Wirige-gify - |2 %08} B, 508)
Balance a1 31 March 33496 1,954 36,450

Retail, Wholesale and Fleet receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery of debt.

Indicators that there is no ressonable expectation of recovery include, but are not limited 1o, the fellowing:

*  Failure of the debtor to engage with or enter into a repayment plan with the company; or

#  The debtor has been placed under liquidation; or

«  Thedebtor has entened into bankruptcy proceedings, and the company determines that the debtor doas not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flow to repay the amounts subject to write-off,

6

154/298



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)

Reconciliation of the gross carrying amount of receivables for which provision is made are as below;

Retail & Wholesale receivables

Lifutimae

ECL nt. Lifatims

12 morth credit- ECL credit-
Condalidated 2021 LEL Impaired impaired Tatsl
L0060 L'000 5000 £'000

Guross carrying smeust as 51 1 Aprd 15,358 500 TB6,685 60308 16246481
Changes due bo financal ssiets recogrised i the opeting Balanoe:

Trarsfors betacen stages 155,003 [has, 16| 18703 :
- Charge o balirce {2,605 345] [EL R 16,083 {2,077, Tag)
Clasing ECL of rerw financial assets originated 5340 643 55,976 4,375 5,400,554
Fittanial assirts detesognised dusling Uhe peiicd ather than weitealty 12,266,719 [B45T1 [G3E&]  (2.357,656)
Wrte-affs o+ isoac0)  (50.800)
Balance 8 31 March A8, 7RaAr: 483,808 ARFN  I6261ETH

Lidetime
ECL ot Lifetime
12 month credit- L credin-
Consolidated 2020 ECL impaired impained Tatal
000 £'000 5000 000
Gros camying amoont as at 1 Apri 14,539,759 714,101 55,922 15453837
Changes duar Lo Tinancial avsets recagnned in The opering Balanoe:

- Tramsfers hetween stages |204,254&| 162,183 42,113
- Change n balirce 3, 0, 90T U2, 1bH) TW5E36  (21H1.58%
Cloriing ECL of mew feractial asiets ofipnated 5,059,608 151,480 9,796 5,150,864
Finangial assets derecognised during the pered other than weite-offy |1,557 404 [128901) |48,030)  (1,107,335)
wine-offs . |65, 335) 159,335
Balance 2t 31 March 15398800 TEGGES 60998 16246453
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)

Fleet receivables

Ufetime ECL  Uiftime ECL

e enedil- credit-
Comalidated 2021 I paired mpaired Taital

5'000 5000 5000

Gaos carmying amount a3 21 1 Aprd 2,040,056 7,936 2,047,537
Changos dia Do linangial aisets recognicnd i The obning Baline:
- Tranelers betwaen siagey {7.1a1) T.141
- Change in balarce {6 D) 12,597) AT 507)
Clasing FOL of rerw firareial atiets oripmated ThE 25 2547 TS
Financial sssets derecognised during the pericd other than weiie-alffs (441,648 |88 487, 4325
Wae-olls {1,556 {1,596)
Balance a1 31 March 1975684 12,345 18880z

Lifetiena ECL  Lifetime ECL

ned eredit: credit-
Comsolidated 2020 Impaired impaired Tatal
. SN SN
Girrd £ArTying smeent as o1 1 Aprd 1,772,585 13,585 1,785,180
Changes due ta financal ausets recognised in the opening bafance:
- Trarlers batwden STapes 9,427 & A37
Change in balirce {341, 255] e (154,478
Chosing ECL of mirw finamiial asiats ofipmated P51 M6T 1030 R 1T
Finandial axuets derecognised during the period other than wie-affa {348.111) |438) {120, 545)
Wiise-glfy = 18500 {B.508)
Halance a1 31 March 2,040,056 7936 2,047,592
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)
Significant accounting estimate and judgement

The consalidated entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the ECL associated with its loan and recelvable assets

carrbed at amortsed cost and motor vehicles under operating lease (exduding residual value) and recognises a loss

altowance for such losses at each reporting date, The measurement of ECL reflects:

*  Anunbiased and probability-welghted amount that s determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

«  The time value of money; and

s  FReasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or etfort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, in light of potential impacts the
current COVID-19 pandemic presents.

Modifications relating to COVID-19

The conselidated entity has provided a number of support measures for customers impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic. These include loan repayment deferrals for retall, fleet and wholesabe customers. The repayment deferrals
were considered to be a continuation of the existing loans, and therefore, accounted for as non-substantial loan
modifications,

For retall and wholesale, loans with gross carrying value of approximately 5433,745,000 were subject to COVID-19
related repayment support at the time that they were induded In the lifetime ECL provision. Of these exposures, loans
with gross carrying value of approximately $204,713,000 have changed to 12-month ECL as at 31 March 2021, For
fleet, as the consolidated entity uses simplified approach, all loans ase included in the lifetime ECL.

The arrangements for fleet and dealer customers who availed of the suppart packages have also now concluded.
Retall customers requiring further assistance post the end of deferrals are managed on a case by case basls,

9
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Funding

In this section, the focus Is on debt funding of the consolidated entity. Further information is provided on debt issuance
and credit facilities available to manage Lguidity risk.

10. Due to banks and other financial institutions

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

£'000 0000
Banks and other financial institutions 4,115,458 4,575,501
Taotal due to banks and ather financial institutions 4,115,458 4,575,501
Maturity analysks
Current
Banks and other financial institutions 1,524,735 1,939,496
Non-Current
Banks and other financial institutions 1,590,723 2,636,005
4,115,458 4,575,501

incleded in the “Duee to banks and other inancialinstitutions” is securitised debt of 52.880,900,000 as at 31 March 2021
(2020 53,042,346,000] representing the value of tarm loans held by external parties in the spacial purpose entities. The
special purpose entities ssued interest-bearing notes to third parties amounting 1o 52, 580,900,000 as at 31 March 2021
(2020: 3,042, 346,000), The company holds the balance al the special purpose entities of 5738,625,000 as at 31 March
2021 (2020: 5784,925,000). $3,619,525,000 laans and receivables are pledged as coliateral for the senior notes under
secuitisation as at 31 March 2021 (2020: 53,837, 271,000].

The Interest payable on the secured notes as at 31 March 2021 amounted to 672,000 (2020: 51,372,000) and Is
included in “acerued interest payable”,
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Funding {continued)

11. Bonds and commercial paper

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

3000 5'000
Commercial paper 4,686,925 4221561
Medium term nate 12,164,260 11,914,722
Total bonds and commercial paper 16,851,185 16,136,283
Maturity analysis
Current
Bonds and commerdial gager 8,030,742 6,291,881
Non-Current
Bonds and commerdal paper 8,820,443 9,844,400
16,851,185 16,136,283

Bands and commercial paper are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference betwean the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redempticn
amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the bonds or commercial paper using the effective
interest method.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition or issue of a financial liability are included in the initial
recognition of the financial instruments.

Holders of any outstanding bonds, debentures, notes and other investment securities and commercial paper
summarised in the tables above have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements govermed by Japanese law, one between

Toyota Motor Corporation {“TMC"] and Toyota Financial Services Corporation {“TFSCY) dated 14 July 2000, and the
other between TFSC and the company dated 7 August 2000,
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Funding {continued)

12, Securitisation and transferred assets

In the normal course of business, the consolidated entity enters into transactions by which it transfers financial assets
to special purpose entities. These transfors do not give rise to derecognition of those financial assets for the
consolidated entity,

Securitisation

Term loans securitised under the company’s securitisation programs are equitably assigned to bankruptcy remate
spedial purpose entities. The consolidated entity is entitbed to any residual income of the securitisation program after
all payments due to Investors have been met. in addition, where derivatives are transacted between the special purpose
entities and the parent, such that the parent retains exposure bo the variability in cash flows fram the transferred term
lpans, the lgans will continue to be recognised on the parent’s balance sheet, The investors have full recourse only 1o
the term loans segregated into the special purpose entities,

Consolidated Consalidated

2021 020

000 000
Carrying amount of traniferred assets 1,619,525 3827271
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 1,380,900 3,042,346
Met position for carrying amount 738,625 TB4,925
Fair value af transferred assets 1,890,494 4,146,309
Falr value of assoclated liabilities 2,903,041 3,068,623
Met position for fair value amount 987,453 1,077,636

Er
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Funding {continued)
13, Credit facilities
Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020
'000 5'000

Amount available:
Bonds, commercial paper, term loans and other short term borrowings 29,858 365 33977438
Bank overdraft 15,000 15,000
Securitisation
<Sanior Note 4,590,000 4 550,000
-Mezzanine Note 1,210,000 1,210,000
Amount utilized:
Bonds, commercial paper, term loans and other short term borrowings 18,130,381 17,740,565
Bank overdraft 3 =
Securitisation
“Serior Mote 2. 880,900 3042346
-Mezzanine Note 738,625 784,925
Amount not utilised:
Bonds, commercial paper, term loans and ather short term Barrowings 11,727, 984 16,236,873
Bank owverdraft 15,000 15,000
Securitisation
-Sanior Mote 1,709,100 1,547,654
-Mezzanine Note 471,375 425,075

Medium term note, commercial paper programs, term loans and other short term borrowings

Medium term note and commercial paper programs allow the company to issue medium term notes and commercial
paper in either Australizn or overseas markets up to a wotal of 524,074,833,000 (2020: 527,075,681,000).

The company has sccess to 52,021,967,000 of uncommitted facilities (2020; $1,971,225,000] and 5400,000,000 of
committed facilities (2020; $400,000,000] from various banks. The company also bas a $1,313,111,000 facifity available
with Toyota Motor Credit Corporation (2020: 51,641,497,000] and a 52,048,454 000 facility available as part of Toyota
Group Master Credit Facllity [2020: 52, 889,035,000] as at 31 March 2021.

Credit support agreement

Haolders of debt securities issued by the company may have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by
lapanese law, one between TMC and TF5C dated 14 July 2000, and the other between TFSC and the company dated ¥
August X000 (together, the “Credit Support Agreements”).

Halders of such securities will have the right 1o claim directly against TFSC and TMC to perform their respective
ohligations under the Credit Support Agreements by making a written claim together with a declaration to the effect
that the holder will have recourse to rights given under the Credit Support Agreements. If TFSC and/or TMC receive such
a clalm from any holder of such securities, TFSC and/or TMC shall indemnify, without any further action or formality,
the holder against any loss or damage résulting from the fallure of TFSC andfor TMC to perform any of their respective
ohligations under the Credit Support Agreements, The holder of such securities who made the claim may then enforce
the indemnity directly against TFSC and/for TMC.
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Funding [continued)

13, Credit facilities (continued)

Credit support agreement [continued)

In consideration for the Credit Support Agreements, a Credit Support Fee Agreement was entered into between TF5C
and the company as at 30 March 2001. The Credit Support Fee Agreement provides that the company will pay to TFSC
a fee cquivalent to o percentage of the weighted sverage outstanding amount of the company's medium term notes

and cammereial paper that have the benefit of the Credit Suppart Agreements,

Thae directors are not aware of any instances of a written claim and declaration under the terms of the Credit Support
Agreements, in connection with the company”™s outstanding medium term notes and commercial paper.

Master credit facility ("MCF”)

354 Doy Credit Agreement, Three Yeor Credit Agreement and Five Fear Credit Agreement

The MCF between the company and other Toyota affiliates was renegotiated in November 2020 where a US35.0 billien
354-day syndicated bank crediy facility, expiring in November 2021 was renewed, The US55.0 billlon three year
syndicated bank credit facility and the US35,0 billion five year syndicated bank credit facility, expiring in Novemnber 2022,
and 2024, respectively, that were entered into during November 2019 remained in place,

The ability to make drawdowns is subject to covenants and conditions customary in transactions of this nature, including
negative pledge provisions, cross-default prowvisions and limitations on certain consolidations, mergers and sales of
assets. These agreements may be used for general corporate purposes and none was drawn upon asat 31 March 2021,
The company is in compliance with the covenants and conditions of the credit agreaments described above.

Bank overdraft

Thie bank everdraft is an unsecured 515,000,000 facility 25 at 31 March 2021 {2020: $15,000,000]. Interest i charged
at prevailing market rates, The bank overdraft is payable on demand and subject to annual review,
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Capital management

This secthon covers the capital structure of the consolidated entity.
14. Contributed equity

Consolidated Consolidated

021 2020
5000 $'000
Contributed equity 120,000 120,000

At 31 March 2021 there were 120,000,000 ardinary shares fully paid.

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the consalidated entity
in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands, every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy k5 entitled to one vote
and, upan a pall, each share is entitied 1o ane vote,

15, Reserves

Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020
57000 5'000
Fareign currency translation reserve
Balance at 1 April 8476 &, B0
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign associate entity 5,456) 4 1,667
Balance at 31 March 3,020 8,476

Forelgn currency translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation af investments accounted for using the equity method is taken to the foreign
currency branslation reserve, The reserve is subsequently recognised in profit and loss when the net investment is
dizposed of.
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Capital management (continued)

16.Retained earnings
Consolidated Consolidated
021 2020
$°000 £'000
Opening balance 1,435 666 1,371,326
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 185,168 B4,340
Balance at the end of the period 1,620,834 1,435,666

Under the income tax consolidation regime, the franking account balance of the compary as at 1 April 2003 was
permanently transferred (o the head entity of the consolidated tax group, The company ceases to have a franking
account during the time it remains a member of the consolidated group.

The income tax consobidation rules do permit the company to pay a franked dividend to its sharehalder with the head
eratity's franking account bearing a reduction for the franking credit attached to the dividend. There were na Tully
franked dividends paid during the year endied 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

Since year end the directors have recommanded the payment of a final fully franked divided of 43.55 cents per fully

paid ordinary share {2020: nil cents). The amount of the proposed dividend expected to be paid on or before 30 June
2821 out of retainad earmings at 31 March 2021, but not recognised as a llability at year end, is $52, 365,000,
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Financial instruments and risk

This section covers the financial instruments held by the consolidated entity including derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments and financial risk management information.

17. Derivative financial instruments

Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020
5000 $'000

AsLets
Interest rate swap contracts B, 161 Q8,594
Cross currency swap contracts 40,5559 1,207,576
Forward foreign exchange contracls 31,704 162,058
Derivative financial instrument assets 158,514 1,458,228
Mdf[LE'ssil: Bitateral credit valuation adjustments |"CVA") 2,910 |5,857)
Total derivative financial instrument assets - measured at fair value 161,424 1,452,371
Liabllities
Interest rate Swap contracts 128,682 211,025
Cross curmency swap contracts 625,501 330
Forward forelgn exchange contracts 24 A58 -
Total darivative financial instrument labilities - measurad at fair value 778,641 211,415
Current derivative financial instruments
Drerivative fimancial assets - current 65,140 397,734
Derivative financial liabilities - current o3 317 30,966
Non-current derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial assets - non-current 95,284 1,064,637
Derivative financial liabilities - non-current 685,324 180,449

Measurement

The conselidated entity uses derivatives not designated in a qualifying hedging relationship, to manage its exposure to
fareign currency and interest rate risks. Derhvative financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value an
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their falr value at the end of each
rirparting period. The deratives have nat been designated as hedging instruments consequently, changes in the fair
value of derivatives are recognised immediately in profit or loss as interest expense and similar charges. This may, to
the extent that they are not offset by the transfation of the items economically hedged, intreduce velatility in the
consolidated entity's profit or loss and produce anomalous results.

Fair value estimation
The fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market [over-the-counter derivatives] is
determined using valuation techniques. The fair value of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps is calculated as

the present value of the estimated future cash flows, The fair value of foreign exchange contracts is determined using
the forward exchange market rates at the end of the reporting peried.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
17, Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Bilateral eredit valuation adjustments

The credit valuation adjustment is an adjustment to the fair value of the derivative instruments to account for the
counterparty credit rick ["CCR®). It is the credit spreads of both the group and the counterparty, together with market
factars, that drive the biloteral eredit waluation adjustments,

Accounting estimates

The consolidated entity applies accounting estimates and assumptions to make reasonable judgements on carrying
amounts of assets and Nabilities. One area that invalves same level of estimates or complexity of assumptions is
derivative financial instruments.,

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at falr values, by valuation method. The different fevels are
defined as follows:

Level 1: guoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabi#ities

Level X! inputs other than guoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or Rability, either
directly 1.e. as prices) or indirectly (1Le. derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or llability that are not based on observable market data

Thie consolidated entity’s financial instruments that are measured and recognised at fair value are dorivative assets and
derivative liabilities used for hedging [i.e. interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward exchange contracts).
While these instruments are used Tor economic hedging, the consolidated entity does not apply hedge accounting.

A5 AT 31 MARCH 2021 Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
5'000 4'000 5000 5'000

Derivative financial assets through profit or loss

Derivatives used for economic hedging

Fofeign exchange contracts - 11,794 - 11,794
Interest rate swap contracts . 85,161 . BB, 161
Cross currency swap contracts - 40,559 - 40,559
Add: Bilateral CwaA - 2,910 - 2,910
Total financial assets - 161,424 - 161,424

Derivative financial labilities through profit or loss
Derivatives used for economic hedging

Foreign exchange contracts o 24,458 - 24,458

Interast rate swap contracts : 128,682 . 128,682

Cross currency swap contracts - 625,501 - 625,501

Total financial liabilities - 778,641 - TTE.641
E
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

17, Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Fair walue hierarchy |continued]
A5 AT 31 MARCH 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5'000 5'000 5000 5'000
Derivative financial assets through profit or loss
Derivatives used for economic hedging
Foreign exchange contracts g 162,058 . 162,058
Interest rate swap contracts . 98,554 - 48,594
Cross currency Swap contracts - 1,207,576 - 1,207,576
Less: Bilateral OFA : [5,857) : 15,857
Total financial assets - 1,462,371 - 1,462,371
Derivative financial Habilities through profit or loss
Derivatives used for economic hedging
Foreign exchange contracts . .
Interest rate swap contracts - 211,025 - 211,025
Cross curreéncy Swap contracts * %0 = 330
Total financlal liabllities - 211,415 - 211,415

18. Non-derivative financial instruments
Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes, Estimated discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for financial instruments,

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and the fair wvalues of those financial assets and labilities not
presented on the consolidated entity’s balance sheat at fair value.

Consolidated 2021 Consalidated 2020
Carrying Carrying
amaount Fair value amount Fair value

5000 5'000 5'000 5'000
Financial assets
Loans and recefvahles * 18,052,552 19,728,614 18,035,325 19,399,979
Term deposits 554,000 554,995

18,606,552 20,283,609 18,035,325 19,309,979

Fimancial liabilities
Due to banks and other financial institutions 4,115,458 4,145,305 4,575,501 4,619,460
Bonds and commercial paper 16,851,185 17,403,150 16,136,283 16609087

20,966,643 21,548,455 20,711,784 213228527

* The carrying amount and fair valee of lpans and recelvables were previpusly disclosed ar 519,602, 757,000 and 521,034,661,000,
respectively, 3s at 31 March 2020 which ncluded motor vehicles under operating lease,

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
falr values due to their short term nature. The falr value of term deposits |s estimated by discounting the future
eontractual cash flows at the current market interet rate that is available to the consalidated entity for simitar finanginl
instruments. The fair value of the loans and receivables is estimated at pontfolio level by discounting the contractual
cash flows using current lending rates. The fair value of financial labilities 5 estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the consoldated entity for similar financial
nstruments.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
19. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are affset and the net amount reparted in the statement of financial position where the
consolidated entity currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is intention to
settle om a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The consolidated entity has also entered
into arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but stdl allow for the related amounts te be set off in
certaln cireumstances, such as ratings downgrade or event of defauln

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enforceable master

netting arrangements but not offset, as at 31 March 2021. The column ‘net amount’ shows the impact on the
consolidated entity's statement of financial position if set-off rghts were exercised.

Ifects af oifvetting: on the stafement of

Comalidated Financisl posftion Relsied smounts not offser
Gagns MNut
amounis amounis
set-oif presented Amounts
the nthe subject to
stsamend  itEtemant master
Grors of financial  of finangial nuiting Cashy Hut
AMOURTE position position wmangements  Coflateral amoaunt
$'o00 $'000 $'000 41000 5000 £'000
01
Finantial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents [b) 3,471,008 3ATLO28 3471088
Term deposits (b 554,000 - 554,000 - - 554,000
Loans and receivatdes 18,052,552 - 180532552 - - IBOSRSSR
Derhvathae Bnsncial bratruments {B) 161474 : 161,424 [N4E, 737} 42004 #3497
Othar assaty (3) 113,708 {24,941} 88,7564 - 4455601 Ak 154
Tartal 22,353,703 (14941} 2r.327,768 |E40,T3T) {56, 700]  22,130336
Firancial liabilities
Due tor banks and other financial inititiond (b) 4,415 458 4 4,115,458 . - 4115 458
Dermvative Bnanclal betruments {b) THEEL] 78,641 (540, 737) 144, 8001 553 308
b liabiies (a) _SERIAT (pADM1) 498,405 [12,100) 465,306
Total 5,417,446 [14.941)  5.392,505 [140,737)  (56.700] 5155073
020
Financlal ansets
Cash and cash equsvaients (b) 1,937,976 1937976 1937976
Loans and receiveties 18,095 305 - 1803525 - - AR5 8KE
Deerivative Bnencial irstruments (b) 1,462,371 . 1462,371 [208, 38| |235.400) 1,017 333
Other assats [3) 47,558 {10753 36,007 2 - 16907
Tatal 11,483,330 [10.751) 21472579 [209.739)  (235400] 21007440
Firancial abiliies
Dwsd (s banks and other linancial instiiugiona (b) 4575581 £ &.575 50 = § 4575 501
Deerrvative Enpncial istruments {b) M1.415 211,415 | 208, 738) 1676
Dithpe lishiMiec (o) 61532 (0751 635,63 - [m3sa00)  30an
Total 5,400 758 [10.751)  %.392.547 [208.739)  (235400] 4,947 408
40
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

19, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities [continued)
{a) Offsetting arrangements

Other assets and liabilities

On the wholesale dealer statements, monthly financing and other receivables fram dealerships are offset against
monthly commissions and other payables te dealerships. The amounts are settied and presented net in the statement
of financial position.

(b} Master netting arrangements and set-off arrangements = not currently enforceable

Derivative transactions with counterparties are covered by 1504 agreements; term loans, term deéposits and cash
dipasits are covered by slandard agreemients. Under the terms of these arrangements, upon an event of default, a
ratings downgrade to a certain level or an early termination event, the net amount owing to, or receivable from, a
counterparty in the same currency will be taken as due and the arrangement will be terminated. Since no such ewvent
subsists and the consolidated entity has no other legally enforceable right of set-off, these amounts have not been set
off in the statement of financial position but have been presented separately in the table above. Collateral may be
posted daily in respect of certain derivatives transacted with any counterparty covered by a Credit Support Annex for
Variation Margin agreements.

20. Financial risk management

The consalidated entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk lincheding currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and residual value risk, The consalidated entity's overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and used vehicle markets and seeks to manage potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of the conselidated entity.

The consolidated entity does not enter inta or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,
for speculative purpeses. Derivative financial instruments are used to manage the consolidated entity’s exposure to
currency risk and interest rate risk, The residual value risk of the censolidated entity arises mainly from receivables
under operating lease and loans with guaranteed future value.

Risk management is carricd out by various committees and departments based on chartgrs approved by the senior
managemaent in accordance with the company’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework. These include:

Enterprise Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management process is established with the purpose of driving an appropriate risk culture across the
enterprise and enabling the organisation to achleve its business goals. This function |s discharged by the Senior Executive
Team [“SET").

Pricing Committes

The Pricing Committes meets to actively assess new business margins in connection with volume and interest rate
reguirements, and a changing interest rate and competitor environment.

Asset and Liability Committee

The Assat and Liability Committee meets to proactively and collaboratively manage and monitor the interest rate and
liquidity risks of the consolidated entity,

The consolidated entity's treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financal risks. The treasury department
implemeants the consolidated entity’'s policies to manage the consolidated entity’s foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, Houidity risk and credit risk with banks and other financial intermediaries.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)
Retail Credit Committee

The Retasil Credit Risk Committes i responsible for the risk assessment, ongoing management, collection, enforcement
and write-off of monies lent by the company to retail customers. The committee ensures that the core credit operations
of the company are aligned with the corporate goals and objectives,

Commercial Credit Risk Committee

The Commercial Credit Risk Committee is responsible for the risk assessment, ongoing management, collection,
enforcement and write-off of monies lent by the company to commercial customers. The committes ensures that the
core credit operations of the company are aligned with the corporate goals and objectives.

Residual Value Committee

The Residual Value Cormmittes undertakes to measure and assess residual values on assets based on best practice and
eritical variable infarmation such as uied car market dynamics, econamic conditions, governmental pabcies/regulations,
the credit market and the conditions of sssets under lease/with guarantesd future value. |t reports all matters with
patential impact on residual value of assets and all ather matters which would mitigate potential residual value risks to
the consolidated entity.

Audit Commities

The Audit Committes i tasked to assist the Board of Directors of the company and management in the exercise of its
oversight responsibalities over the systems of internal control, internal audit activities and ensuring a constant
communication amangst the Audit Committes, management, external audit and internal audit,

Compliance Committas

The Compliance Committee is responsible for the establishment, publication and maintenance of the compliance
framewark (o manage the consolidated entity’s compliance with all the laws, regulations and codes of practice that
apply to the business and the maintenance of the company’s ACL and AFS Licenses,

Internal Audit
The intemnal audit department provides independent, objective assurance and consulting activities designed to add

walue and improve the consolidated entity's operations, It assists management in identifying and mitigating risks, and
recognising kaizen opportunities through its review of business processes, systems, controls, environment and activities.

Product Commitiee

The Product Committee is established to review new and existing products and services incheding the development of
the company’s market place strategy for preduct and service development and roadmap considerations.

Data Gowvernance Committes

The Data Governance Committee has executive data stewardship responsibilitses with focus on treatment of data as a
company asset with value, setting and management of data pavernance initiatives, sponsoring data governance product
development, data-related risk and issue management and resolution, sversight of data management activities and
escalation.

Volce of Customers Committes

The role of the Voice of Customer Committee is to align with TFA Corporate Vision and ensure the customer is at the
heart of everything we do, ensure o ‘customer lens' B incorporated nte all actions undertaken within the company,
wiork eross functionally to selve customer pain paints thus delivering a superior customer experience and review actual

against planned customer and business benefits. The committes also provides regular updates to the SET and the
company’s Board of Directors,
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market risk

{i} Foreign exchange risk

The consolidated entity operates in international eapital markets to abtain debt funding to suppert its earning assets.
Transactions may be denominated in foreign currenches, exposing the consolidated entity to foreign cxchange risk
arising from various currency cxpaunes,

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currency that is not the consolidated
entity's functional eurrency and net investments in foreign operations. The risk s measured using debt maturity analysis.

Management has set up a policy reguining the consolidated entity to manage its foreign exchange risk against its

functional currency. The consolidated entity is required to economically hedge 100% of its foreign exchange risk at the

time of debt issuances. Derivative finandal instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to hedge its

exposure to foredgn currency risk, Including:

*  Forward exchange contracts 1o hedge the foreign currency risk arising on the issue of commercial paper in foreign
currencies and affdiated entity loan; and

=  Crods currency swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk associated with foreign ourrency
denominated medium term notes, bank loans and US commercial paper.

The consalidated entity’s net exposure 1o foreign currgncy risk at the end of the reporting period ended 31 March 2021
is immaterial, There has boen no change in this pesition when compared to the repoerting period ended 31 March 2020,

{ii] Cash flow and falr value interest rate risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will Mucluate

because of changes in market interest rates, The condolidated entity is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the

prevailing levels of market interest rates as it borrows and lends funds at both fleating and fiked interest rates.

Derivative financial instruments are entered into by the consclidated entity to economically hedge its exposure to cash

flow and fair value interest rate risk, including:

*  Fined-to-floating Interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity's
earning assets, Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting loans and receivables from fixed
rates to floating rates;

&  Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity's
functional currency denaominated fixed rate medium term notes and bank loans. Such interest rate swaps have the
econamic effect of converting barrowings from fixed rates to floating rates; and

- Cross currency swaps to manage the forelgn currency and Interest rate risk associated with foreign currency
denominated medium term notes, US commercial paper and bank loans. Such crass currency swaps have the
ecanamic elfect of converting barrowings from loreign denominated fived or Moating rates to functional currency
floating rates.

Under the interest rate swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals
{mainly guarterly], the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by
reference 1o the agreed notional principal amounts. Under the eress currency swaps, the consolidated entity agrees
with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, foreign currency principal and fixed (or floating) rate interest
amounts, and functional currency principal and floating rate interest amounts calculated with reference to the agreed
functional currency principal amount.

The consolidated entity’s palicy i to maintain most of N5 debl exposwre in its functional currency at floating rate, using
interest rale Swaps or cross curtency swaps ta achieve this when necessary.

The following table details the consolidated entity’s exposure ta interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management [continued)
{a] Market risk {continued)

{ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk [continued)

Varizhle Fined mtasest Men bntoreit

interest Rate Rate Braring Total
Coraalidated 2021 S'000 a0 000 000
DOpaerating leae recefvahles = 1,650,004 + 1,650,004
Firuntial sxsets
Corth pnd Beusd soets 1471028 - - 3,471,028
Teem depasits - 554,000 - 554000
Lnany ang reeehulie 4,130,742 14,128,960 - 18, 145,702
Rrviavea Falm Vel 12,614,500 (11418,500% - .
LT TTET A4 600 - CIRT=] a8, Téd
Tatal finansial asvety 20350870 B gAR a4, 164 24,010,538
Firsntial iahiltees
Asnks aned ofhed Brastial natitutizn #4,115.458 - - a4 115458
Commercial papss 4 686,525 4,634 525
Ml LieTR P #7002 11,200,263 12,064,250
CrOus ELFFRNGY SWaDE BB95,756 GBEDS, 756
Efiavinl rale pwadi 3037506 {BOF7.5060
Chiber labilgies 12,100 A85, 306 A0 ADE
Leaco Rabilitms ) 45,950 41,550
Tatsl financisl abdition J1E21E27 [641,134) ARG, 30 21,506,500
Het finandial svietyf{lishilitie | (1,370,957 A 31mEIE 442,147} 2,506,529

Wariablo Fiaed interest Mom Intenest

Intenest Rate Rateg Braring Teral
[+ lidated 2020 s'000 5000 5000 000
Operating leate recoivables - 1,634,681 . 1634621
Financlal assets
Cach and lguid avets 1,937,976 E 1,937,576
Loans and recealies 48,214 13,424,261 16,194,475
Interest rate swags 10,580,000 {14,580, 0000 :
Cibver assets ) = 35,907 _3esar

Total financal assets 4,078,943 36,907

Financial labilities

Banks and other firgncial invtitutons 4575501 4,575,501
Commernial papers 4331 B61 4271 551
Mgdasm tenm nobes 62§, 702 11,200,000 11,904,727
Cross currency swaps B, 1:0,B40 6, 120,8804

bnlerest rate ywaps 4 373 295 4,323, 496)

Othier labilties 235,200 E 3M,231 GG B3
Lease Kabilites — 45087 o _ﬂ:E.I:GI'
Total financia libiities 20,101,500 830,771 w2 m3eser
wet financlal assetsfilabilites) 1:,313.3|u;| nuu'rz |3;\._1,.3_u} 541,538
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

{a] Market risk {continued)

{iii}Interest rate benchmark reform

Following the financial erisis, the reform and replacement of benchmark interest rates such as GBP UBOR and ather
interbank affered rotes "IBORS'] has become a priority for global regulators, There is eurrently uncertainty around the

timing and precise nature of these changes,

The consolidated entity ks assessing the Impact of interest rate benchmark reform on valuation of forelgn currency
floating rate debt. As at 31 March 2021, the consolidated entity does nat hold any floating rate fersign currency debt.

{iv] Sensitivity
The consolidated entity's financial results are exposed to interest rate movements in the market. Shown below is the
potential impact of @ 1% increase in Interest rate on the consolldated entity’s pre-tax profits for the next twelve months.

A 1% decrease in interest rate has an opposiie impact of the same amount, subject to interest rate floor.

Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020
5'000 $'000
Increasef{Decrease) on predax profits 2,135 |4,788)

(b} Credit risk

The consolidated entity takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will cause a financial loss for
the consolidated entity by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principally from lending activities for
financing assets, funding activities such as cash and cash equivalents, depocits with banks and financial institutions and
derivative financial instruments.

{i} Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques wsed for ECL models
Assessment of significant increase (n credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly since initial recognition, the comsolidated
entity considers both quantitative and gualitative information and analysis based on the consolidated entity's histarical
experience and expert oredit risk assessment, incuding forward -looking information.

Retail facilities use the number of days past due ["DPD”) to determine significant increase in credit risk. The consolidated
entity considers that significant increase in credit risk occurs when an asset is equal and more than 30 DPD,

Far non-retail facilities, internally derived credit ratings have been identified as representing the best available
determinant of credit risk. The consolidated entity has adopted the Global Master Grading Model, which was initially
developed by Toyola Fimancial Services Corporation and cailbrated to the Australan market. The grading model
comprises 11 grading levels for instruments not in default (1 8o 11) and one default class (12). The condolidated entity
assigns each facility a credit rating, at initial recognition based on available information about the borrower. Credit risk
is deemed to have increased significantly if the credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date relative
to the credit rating at the date of initial recognition.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

{b) Credit risk [continwed)

{i} Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used for ECL models [continued)
Definition af Defoult

In assessing the impairment of financial asscts under the expected eredit loss model, the consalidated entity defines a

receivable asset as credit impaired if a default rating s assigned to this asset in accordance with its credit policy and

procedures. Credit impalred exposure under the expected credit loss model consists of:

=  Retail loans and non-rated fleet loans which are contractually 90 days past due.,

=  Credit exposures when it becomes obvious that the custamers are no longer able 1o meet its financial obligations
as they fall due.

Calculation of expected credit loss

Expected credit losses are caleulated using three main components: PO, LGD and EAD. These parameters are generally
chitived from internally developed statistical models combined with historical, current and forward-lnoking customer
and macro-econgmic data.

For accounting purposes, the 12 months and lifetime PD represents the expected point-in-time probability of a default
owver the next 12 months and remaining lifetime af the finaneaal instrument, respectivedy, based on conditions existing
at the balance sheet date and future economic conditions that affect credit risk, The LGD represents expected loss
conditional on default, taking inte account the mitigating effect of collateral, its expected value when realised and the
time value of money,

The EAD represents the expected exposure at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from
the balance sheet dote to the default event together with any expected drawdown of a facility. The 12 months ECL is
equal to the discounted sum over the next 12 months of monthly PD multiplied by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is
calculated using the discounted sum of monthly PD over the full remaining lfe multiplied by LGD and EAD.

Incorporetion of forwerd-looking information

The consolidated entity has considered a range of relevant forward-looking Australia’s macro-economic scenarios and
assumptions for the determination of unbiased economic forecast and industry adjustment that support the calculation
of probability welghted expected loss.

These reflect reasonable and supportable fofecasts of future macro-economic conditions that nclude, but are net
limited to, unemployment, interest rates, gross domestic product and house price index, and require an evaluation of
bath the current and forecast direction of the macro-ecanomic opcle.

Incorporation of forward-looking information Increases the degree of judgement required as to how changes in these
macro-gcenamic factoss will affect ECLs. For 31 March 2021 ECL caleulation, the consolidated entity has considered
thres forward-looking scenarios:

a) Base Scenario: Under this scenario, no prominent second wave of COVID-19 emenges at a national level that causes
multiple states to shut down again and leads people to seif-guarantine. NMew cases continually diminish. Macro-
econamic factors incorporated in this scenario are

= GDPincreases by 3.9% in CY2021, followed by & 2.9% increase in CY2022.
#  The unemployment rate peaks at &.4% by the June guarter of 2021, and still Fkely to remain above the 6% mark

by the end of CY2021.
®  CPlrises 2.22% in CY2021,
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

{b) Credit risk [continued)

{i} Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used for ECL models [continued)
Incorporation of forwerd-looking information fcontinued)

b} Upside Scenario: Under this scenario, the cconomic activity is assumed to accelerate faster than the baseling in the
first half of CY2021 as businesses return to operation and employment conditions ease faster than in the baseline
scenario, boosted by the three major rounds of fiscal stimulus and better than expected availability of vaccines.
Macro-econamic facters incorporated In this scenario are

#« Real GOP rebounds sharply by 5.8% in Y2021, followed by a 4.8% expansion in Y2022

#  The unemployment rate peaks at 6.2% by the June guarter of CY2021, and improves to 5.9% by the
December quarter of CY2021.

*  CPlrises 2.88% in CY2021.

c] Recession Scenario: Under this scenario, the dally confirmed cases are assumed to be just above the baseline
projections and state restrictions rermain in place. Macro-economic factors incorporated in this scenario are

#  GDP contracts fer fowr consecuthee guarters untll the June guarter of CY202 2 as a result of significant weakness
in eonsumer confidence. The ehanges in real GOP an an annual average basis are -0.5% for CY2021 and o deeper
2.6% decline in CY2022.

#  The unemployment rate increases to 7.8% by the December quarter of CY2021.

®  CPlrises 1% in CY2021.

As a1 31 March 2021, the ECL under the Base, Upside and Recession scenarios would be $110,249,000, 5100,877,000
and 5147, 177,000, respectively, The consalidated entity has also applied overlays of approximately 554,074 000, As at
31 March 2020, the ECL under the moderate pandemic scenario, severe pandemic scenario and severe pandemic with
overlays scenano would be 5147, 760,000, 5165, 700,000 and 5256, 880,000, respectively. The ECL recognised as at 31
Bdaseh 2021 s S1E7, 750,000 (2030: $739, 750,000).

Noture and effect of madifications an the measuremaent of provigion for daubiful debis

A Boan that is renegotiated is derecognised if the existing contract is cancelled and a new agreement made on
substantially different terms or if the terms of an existing agreement are modified such that the renegotiated loan Is
substantially 3 different instrument. Where suth loans are derecognased, the renegetiated contract is a new loan and

impairment is assessed in accordance with the consobdated entity’s accounting policy,

When the renegotiated loans are not derecognised, impairment continues to be assessed for significant increases in
credit risk compared to the initial origination credit risk rating.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

{b) Credit risk [continued)

{iii} Credit quality and maximum exposure

The consolidated entity's financing assets are exposed to three areas; retail, fleet and whalesale,
Retail

The retall portfolio is the lorgest area which compeises a range of loans and receivables from individual consumers and
smiall business,

Fieet

The fleet portfolio comprises a range of loans and receivables and motor vehicles under operating lease from small to
large commercial dients and gevernment bodies. It also includes novated leasing customers.

Credit risk arising from individual consumers and small business is managed through the application of credit scoring
and manual underwriting to identify and evaluate acceptable risks and portfolio diversification both demographically
and geographically, Credit risk arising from fleet clients is managed by imposition and review (at 2 minimum annually)
of credit limits e ensure fleet cients have the capacity to settle financial commitments. Collateral is also used to secure
funds advanced.

The consolidated entity uses provisioning models to assess the credit quality of financing assets and estimates provision
for amounts not collectible. Amounts not prowided for are deemed collectible.

Whalesale

The wholesale portfolio includes floor-plan finance to motor dealers for new and used motor vehicle stock under aither:

# A bailment facility, under which motor vehicles are bailed by the company to a dealer, and the company retains
ownership of each vehicle until the dealer sells it to a customar; or

= Acharge plan facility, under which the eompany pravides finance to 5 dealer for purchase of mator vehicles which
are charged to the company as security.

In addition to the floor-plan facilities, the wholesale portfolio also includes term loans to dealerships o finance property
and premizes, and revolving working capital loans, These loans are typically secured by general security agreaments,
real property mortgages and personal guarantess,

Due to the nature of these facllities, there is a concentration in the motor vehicle deatership industry, with the risk
spread across market locations throughout Australia. In addition to the coflateral security obtained, credit risk s
managed through regular auditing of the dealerships vehicle inventory, monthly manitoring of financial performance
and pagoing annual reviews, The concentration af credit risk in relation to the two aperating segments i reflected in
Mate 7.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

|b) Credit risk [continued)

{iii} Credit risk exposure by credit quality

The table below show the masimum exposure (o credit sk by key elass of financiol assets, to which the expected
credit less model is applied, based on how the consalidated entity manages the eredit risk:

=  The days past due for retail and non-rated fleet,
#  The risk grade for non-retail portfolio,

Retail (general approach)

Loans and receivables
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
not eredit- eredit-
12 month ECL impaired impaired Total
Consolidated 2021 5'000 5'000 5000 5'000
Equal to and less than 30 days 11,715,802 B = 11,715,802
31-60 days - 112,861 - 112,861
51-50 days . 26,651 . 26,551
Ower 90 days [credit impaired) - - 43,3592 43,392
Total 11,715,802 139,512 43,392 11,808, 706
Consolidated 2020
Equal to and less than 30 days 10,982 G648 - - 10,982 648
3160 days - 223,316 - 223326
G61-90 days . 36,723 : 36,723
Over 90 days [credit impaired) - - B0,958 60,998
Total 10,982,648 260,049 50,998 11,303,695
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

|b) Credit risk [continued)

{iii} Credit risk exposure by credit quality {continued)

Whaolesale (general approach)
Loans and receivables
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
not credit- credit-
12 month ECL impaired impaired Tatal
Conselidated 2021 £'000 4'000 $'000 £'000
Grade 1-7 Marmal Risk 4,018,670 275,073 - 4,293 743
Grade £-11 Watchlist - 69,223 - 69,223
Grade 12 Default (credit impaired) - - - -
Total 4,018,670 344,296 - 4,362,966
Consolidated 2020
Grade 1-7 Mormal Risk 4,416,152 184,877 x 4,701,029
Grade B-11 Watchlist - 241,759 - 241,759
Grade 12 Default (credit impaired) f . - .
Total 4,416,152 526,636 - 4,942,788

Fleet non-graded customer (simplitied approach)

Lease and loans
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

not credit- eredit-

impaired impaired Total
Consalidated 2021 5000 5'D00 £'000
Equal to and less than 30 days 473,858 - 473,858
31-60 days 13,702 . 13,702
61-90 days 4,640 - 4,840
Ower 90 days [credit impaired) . 12,735 12,235
Total 452,200 12,235 504,435
Consalidated 2020
Equal to and less than 30 days 448 817 B 448 817
31-60 days 7.940 . 7,940
61-90 days 2,362 - 2,362
Ower 90 days [credit impaired) 4475 4,475
Total 459,119 4,475 463,534
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)

{b) Credit risk [continued)

{iii} Credit risk exposure by credit quality {continued)

Fleet graded customer [simplified approach)

Lease and loans
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

not credit- credit-

Impaired impaired Total
Consolidated 2021 5'000 5'000 5'000
Grade 1-7 Marmal Risk 1,435,324 . 1,435,324
Grade 8-11 Watchlist 48,160 - 48,160
Grade 12 Default (credit iImpaired) . 109 109
Total 1,483,484 109 1,483,593
Consalidated 2020
Grade 1-7 Mormal Risk 965,319 . 965,319
Grade 8-11 Watchlist 615,618 . 615,618
Grade 12 Default (credit Impaired) - 3.4a1 3.461
Total 1,580,937 3461 1,534,398

(v Funding activities

That consalidated entity’'s treasury department manages credit risk through the use of external rating such as Standard
and Poor’s rating or equivalent, counterparty diversification, monitoring of counterparty financial condition and
ensuring master netting agreements are In place with all derivative counterparties.

The belew table shows the percentage of the conselidated entity’s money market deposits and derivatives relating to
funding activities, based on the Standard & Poor's rating.

Consolidated Consalidated

2021 2020
Rating % %
Al 2 13
As 1 5
& a7 a0
B - 2
100 100

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting perbod, without taking into account collateral ebtained,
i the carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful debts or impairment, of each financial asset, including
defivative financial mstruments, in the statement of financial pasition
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)
(¢} Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the consolidated entity is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be failure to meet
obligations ta repay creditors and fulfil commitments te lend. The consolidated entity, in the normal course of business,
reguires substontial funding to support the level of its earning assets and working capital reguirements, and
consequently is exposed to liguidity risk,

The liquidity management processes carried out by the treaswry department includes:

= Day-to-day funding managed by monitoring existing and futwre cash flows to ensure that requirements can be
met. This includes planning the replenishment of funds before they mature orfand borrowed by osstomers, The
consolidated entity maintains an active presence in the domestic and international capital markets to enable this
1o happen;
Monitoring the concentration and profile of debt maturities; and
Maintaining backup credit Facilities,

(i} Finameing arrangements

The consolidated entity utilises various linancing arcangements such ag commaercial paper, medium term notes, bilateral

bank loans and securitisation to meet liquidity requirements, It has access to a wide array of credit facilities to manage

liquidity risk [refer to Note 13].

(i) Maturity of financial liabilities

The tables below analyses the consolidated entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their

remaining contractual maturity as at the reporting period for all:

=  non-derivative financial liabilities; and

* net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows,

The amaunts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash fliows, For interest rate swaps, the cash flows have
been estimated using forward interest rates applicable at the end of the reporting period.,

52

180/298



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05954)
ooOooood

Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

(£} Liquidity risk {continued)

{ii} Maturity of financial liabilities [continued)

3-12 Over 5

=1 Month 1-3 Manths Maonths 15 Years Yoan Total
Haon-derivatines
Banks and other Francial institutions 192,519 151,120 2,100.517 101027 . 4,148 183
Bonds and commercial paper 2,154,387 L1T6. 547 Ja821 8367097 B5423 105075
Other llabiies RR2075 1L279 A8 G218 56424 . A58 406
Lease Fakilies 517 1,037 50T 17,299 11,513 46,113
Tatal mon-derivatives LTI9.498 TAFH TR 5979713 10,051,847 B16.936 22007777
Dierivatives
Forward foregn eachange conbractsy
- Domsght carrency [ROTS64)  (LISLTRI]  (LO19.040) - (HiRE3%4]
- S gurnency BOZ 468 137182 1,005,860 - 3,180,510
Erleresd rate swagi [ 1606 |, 848 (32,168) 123.566) E 63,8300
Cross Curfrncy Swips
- Pay leg 1L053,781 3.R8R Lo3arTis 6372859 DET, 740 9,435 586
- Receive ey _[0ITSN) (3961 [(LO2LI0S)  [579516)  [BOSATI|  (R.656,046]
Tatal derkathves L AA (AR SS0TTT 1GRAT  TOSAIE
Totsl _RTAB0IS  JAMIIE 5950869  IOG0REI4 979253 R3726,008

312 Ower 5

<1 Month 1-1 Manths. Manths 1-5 Years Femrs Total
Corolidated 2030 5000 000 S000 5'000 5000 o
Hor-derivatives
Banks and olhesd frdntial indlitutions * 186,908 164,804 1524430 2657240 - 45313091
Bonds and commercial papes * LO41,65% 1014085 3379045 1D096.264 - 16631153
Ok labilties A06,TET 16,848 37336 54,680 - 605631
Lense Babilfes _an7 6 45 aTL 4TI 5037
Tatal pon-derivatives LMEAH 1396TI M5 12997ER 14TH0 21990134
Derivathes
Farward foren exthinge coNLacts
- Bomight tuirency [FHR.5%0| R, 364) [3R1.113) - - [1.921,00R]
- Bold gurrengy 56,047 56 AR 346 RET E: 4 1759775
Inbevest rane swads 673 | 8,807} 180,070 [55.859) E £a7,967]
CIDSs Currency fwaps
- Pary leg 17,317 THA220 1,006,318 5916821 E T TIBERE
- Receive leg (BLT8)_ (B83963)  (LIGLSM4)  [6.8OLEES| - (BASARE9
Tetal dernatives 4211 (s [es7)  (sansn) STEEE
Total _ LEGEEN LISLESY AMSTEl  LLeeGi AT 20540 06N

* Due to 3 compartational error, the contractual undiscounted cash fows for “pankes and otk financial irstitutions® ang “bonds and commencisl
paper” har the yiad ended 31 March J030 were overstabed by 54,115,000 and $50.963,000, respectively, i has been comected by restating the

alfmctotd b e bof g yodr. This error did not aflec) the Rabsilitars phesented in She comoldated statement of linicdial peiton,
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Operating assets and liabilities

This secthon covers the operating assets and liabilities of the consolidated entity including cash and cash equivalents,
prepayments, accounts payable and accrued expenses payable.

21. Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits

{a) Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020
£'000 $'000
Cach in bank 110,028 97,976
Deposits at call 3,361,000 1840, 00¢
3,471,028 1,937,976

At the end of financial year, the company held restricted cash of 5209862000 {2020; 5202,678,000)in cash and deposits
at call representing cash collections on securitised assets transferred to special purpose entities.

Recagnitian and measurement

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in bank, depasits held at call with financialinstitutions, ather shart-term, highly
liquid investments with ariginal maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Cash in bank and deposits
at eall earn interest at prevalling market rates. Interest & recognised in the income statement using the effective interest

rate method,
{b) Term deposits
Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020
5'000 $'000
Term deposits 554,000 =
Taotal term deposits 554,000 -
Maturity analysis
Current
Term deposits 554,000
Non-current
Term deposits
Term deposits 554,000 =

Term deposits include deposits (rot at call) placed with financial institutions with original maturities greater than three
manths and are measured ot amortised cost, Interest is recognised in the income statement using the effective mterest
rate method.
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)
22. Cash flow information

{a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash outflow from operating activities

Consolidated Consolidated

021 2020
£'000 £'000

Profit attributable to cwners of the parent 185,168 64,340
Share of profit of associates {10,950) [11,153)
Depreciation, write-off and amortisation 32,089 28,111
Amortisation - upfront receipts 1,822 1,779
Amortisation - prepaid expenses 24,920 25,600
Net gain on sale or derecognition of non-current assets (37,101) [16,112)
Met [gain}floss on translation of forelgn currency transactions 13,839,389) 2,525,623
Changes in fair value of financial Instruments 1,834, B76 (1,283, 789)
Movements in operoting assets and lebilities:

|Decrease]fIncrease in provision for impairment of receivable (62,000) 135,150
|Decrease)fIncrease in provision for impairment on residual value (14,5000 27.370
Decrease/{Increase] in loams and recaivahbles 44773 (1,084 463)
Decrease/{Increase] in assets under net operating lease (net of accumulated

depreciation) 20,909 (164 4%4)
Increase in deferred tax asset [11,525) “
(Decrease)fIncrease in deferred tax llability {10,177) 4,555
{Decrease)fIncrease in other, contract and lease Habilities {124,641) 192,311
{Increase}/Decrease in other assats {50,458) 19,825
Increasef{ Decrease) in income 1o payable 32,550 (20.990)
Increasef{Decrease) in derivathve financial instruments at falr wvabue through

prefit or loss 1,816,111 (992222
Increase in term deposits {554,000) -
Met cash outflow from operating activities [721,523) [558&,555)
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22, Cash flow information (continued)
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|b) Reconciliation of Habilities arising from finanding activities

Corsolidated
flal]

4000

Borroaings 10,711,784

Deaen Rabilims
&5, 007

Conmeolidated
il ]

000

Barrawings 18,191,045

Lease Nabilites

Cmh

$'000

2,284,699

Cath
Hows

5'000

1,127,142

i5,187)

Man-cash changes
Recopnised
on
Forelgn adoption
sechinge  Amarthatien o AASE 16
4000 000 £000
(2077 543} 4770 -
hﬂuﬁhﬂunw
Recopnised
[=4]
Foreign adoption
exthanpe  Amorticstion  of AASE 16
£'000 55000 €000
1,341,073 L2518
15315
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

23, Other assets

Consalidated Consolidated

2021 020

$'000 $'000
Prepayments. 24,393 24,300
Other debtors 63,519 11,913
Accrued interest receivable £52 B34
BA, 764 36,907
Other assets expacted to be recovered within 12 months 87,769 36,088
Other assets expacted to be recovered after more than 12 months 995 819
BE,TE4 36,907

24. Other liabilities and contract liabilities

{a) Other liabilities
Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020
£'000 $'000
Emplayes entitlements 14,326 12,959
Accrued interest payable 0,790 55,134
Amounts payable to related entities® 219,824 157461
Accounts payable® 85,023 295,134
Accrued expenses [including related parties) 75,624 46,473
Other 32 E19 3E,4T0
498,406 605,631
Other liabitities expected (o be settled within 12 months 441 982 550,951
Other liabilities expected to be settled in more than 12 months 56,424 54,680
) 498,406 — 605,631
* Due to reclassification, prior year amounts have been restabed. This oid nod affect the Bablifties presented in the consoldated statement of financial
postion
{b) Contract liabilitics

The conselidated entity bas recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities.

Consolidated Consalidatad

2021 2020
£°000 £'000
Contract labilities 103 909 B9,262

Of the above amount, 562,345,000 (2020: 551,007,000) is expected to be settled within 12 months of the balance date,
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabifities. Note the amounts presented below are gross, while the amounts recognised n the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income are presented net of related costs as the consolidated entity & acting
as an agent.
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

24, Other labilities and contract lHabilities (continued)

|b) Contract liabdlities [continued)
Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020
5'000 $'000
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract lability balance at the
beginning af the period 63428 0,294

As permitted under AASBE 15, the transaction price allocated to (partially) unsatisfied performance obfigations as of 31
Mdarch 2021 and 31 March 2020 ks not disclosed.

Employes entitlemants
(i} Short-term ohligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the end of each
reparting period are recognised in other payables i respect of employees' services up to the reporting date and arg
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave
are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at rates paid or payable,

(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Tha liabilities for long service leave are not expected to be setthed wholly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees rendered the related service. They are therefore recognised in the provision for employee
benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employess up to the end of each reporting period. Consideration is given at expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employes departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market
yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash flows.

(iii} Retirernent benefit obligation

All employees of the consalidated entity are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death according to the
consolidated entity’s superannuation plan. The consolidated entity has a defined contribution plan. The defined
contribution plan receives fived contributions from the consolidated entity and the consolidated entity's legal and
constructive obligation is limited to these eantributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expense a3 they become payable, Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that cash refund, or @ reduction in the futwre payments is
available.
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Mon-operating assets

This section cuthnes the non-operating assets of the consolidated entity. Included in this section are the following
information:
Investment accounted for using the equity method
# Property, plant and equipment
*  Right-of-use assets
* Intangible assets
*  [eferred tax asset

25. Investment accounted for using the equity method

Consolidated Ownership interest
Faira | 2020 2021 2020
5'000 $000 kL %
Name of entity
[a) Mevement in carrying amount
Linlisted
Toyota Finance Mew Zealand Limited
Carrying amaunt at 1 April 50,145 ¥7.325 45,45 45,45
Share of profits after income tax 10,950 11,153
Dividend recened . i
Net exchange differances on translation of foreign
assoclate entity (5.456) 1,667
Carrying amount at 31 March 95638 90,145

The principal activities of Teyota Finance New Zealand Limited during the period were:

to finance motor vehlcle acquisitions in the form of leasing, term purchase, consumer and commercial loans;
to provide bailment facilities and commercial lnans to Toyota dealers;

the marketing of vehicle and finance related insurance products;

the provision of retail finance and related products for pleasure boats;

the provision of unsccured persanal loans; and

to provide for car sharing services,

Inwestments in assoclates are accounted for In the consolidated financial stabements using the equity method of
aceounting and are carred at east.

Consolidated Consalidated

2021 2020
$'000 $'000
(k) Share of associates’ profits
Profit before income tax 15,332 15,503
Income tax expense (4,382) |, 350
Profit after incoma tax 10,950 11,153
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

25, Investment accounted for using the equity method (continued)

Consolidated entity’s share of:

Azsets Liabilities Revenues Prafit

50 5'000 5'000 57000
(c) Summarised financial information of assoclates
Consolidated 2021
Toyola Finance New Zealand Limited 536,657 440,411 59,319 10,950
Consolidated 2020
Toyota Finance Mew Zealand Umited G646, 388 555,637 64,346 11,153

Principles of consolidation

Associates are all entities over which the consolidated entity has significant influence but not contrel, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in assodates are accounted
for in the consolidated finpncial staternents using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at
cost.

The consalidated entity's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or lnsses is recognised im profit or loss, and its
share of post-aoquisition mevements in reserves is recognised in other comprehensive income, The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable from
associates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the carrying amount of the
immestment.

When the consalidated entity’s share of losses In an associate equals or exceads its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured longterm recoivables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred oblgations or made payments on behalf of its associate,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the consolidated entity and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
consolidated entity’s interest in associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated wnless the transaction provides
evidence af an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting polickes of pisociates have been changed where
necessanry to ensure cansistency with the palicies adopted by the consolidated entity.

Forelgn currency translation

(] Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of each of the consolidated entities are measured using the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Australian dollars, which i the company’s functional and presentation currency.

On consolidation, the exchange ditferences arising from the translation of the net investment in the foreign entity from
functional to presentation currency is recognised in other comprehensive income.

{b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency weing the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and

from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

26, Property, plant and equipment
Accumulated Carrying

Consolidated 2021 Cost depreciation value

5'000 5'000 £"000
Leasehaold improvements 17,136 3,664 13,472
Plant and equipment 6,279 3,780 2,499
Motor vehicles 8,966 1,429 1,537
32,381 8,873 23,508

Accumulated Carrying

Consolidated 2020 Cost depreciation value

%'000 $'000 $000
Leasshold improvements 23,100 9,685 13,405
Plant and equipment 28,315 25,310 3,05
Motor vehicles 9,214 1,775 7,439
60,629 36,780 23,849

Leasehold Plant and Motor

Consolidated 2021 improvements equipmaent vehicles Totals

£°000 000 5000 5000
Carrying value at 1 April 13,405 3,005 7,439 71,849
Additions 2,316 1.520 7,308 11,145
Dizsposals . . |5,201) 15,201}
Deprociation {2,257) 11.918) (2,010 [6,185)
Transfer 8 - - 8
Write-off . (108) . |108)
Carrying value at 31 March 13,472 2,499 1537 23,508

Leasehold Plant and Maotar

Consolidated 2020 improvements equipment vehicles Totals

57000 5000 5000 5000
Carrying value at 1 April 2,059 4,520 GAGT 13,046
Additions 13,047 1,978 B,078 21,503
Disposak 13,111} 13,111}
Depreciation 1.445) 12,183) [1,995] |5,623)
Transfer (163} 162 -
Wirite-olf [404) 11.472) . [1,966)
Carrying value at 31 March 13,405 3,005 7439 13,849
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MNon-operating assets (continued)
26, Property, plant and equipment [continued)

Gaims and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or logs,

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical eost less accumulated depreciation, Historical cost includes
enpenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subseguent costs are Included In the asset's carrying amount or recognised as @ separate asset, as approgriate, only
when it is prabable that future econombe benefits assoclated with the item will flow te the consalidated entity and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All ather repairs and maimenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment is calculated wsing the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, aver thelr estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset class Maethod Estimated useful life

Plant and equipment Straight line 3-5years

Motor vehicles Straight line 1-3 years

Leasehold improvements Straight line Unenpired partion of lease ar useful

life of asset whichever is shorter
The asset’s residual values and useful Fves are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to it5 recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

27, Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Thie balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

31 March 31 March
021 2020
$'000 5'000
Properties 35,014 42,067
Total right-of-use assets 35,014 42,067
Lease liabilities 41,950 45,087
Total lease liabilities 41,950 45,087
Maturity analysis
Current
Lease liabilities - current 6219 4,342
Non-current
Lease liabilities - nan-current 35,731 40,145
41,950 45,087

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the financlal year were 52,559,000, Additions during the year ended 31 March
2020 were 548,620,000, out of which 535,315,000 were recagnited on adoption of AASE 16 Leases.

Thi statement af profit or koss shows the follawing amounts relating to leases:
Consolidated Consolidated

021 2020

Note $'000 S'000
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets - Froperties E 7,593 6,553
Interest expense (included in interest expense and similar charges) 3a 1,195 1,144
Cxpense relating to shart-term leases (included in other expense) 282 aa7

The total cash outflow for leases |excluding short term leases) during the financial year was 56,233,000 (2020
45,197,000},

{a) The censalidated entity’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The consolidated entity leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 3 to 10 years but
may have extenslon options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different
terms and conditians.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding Fability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the conselidaved entity. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-
line Dasis.
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MNon-operating assets (continued)
27. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)
{a]) The consolidated entity’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for [continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis, Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

= fiwed payments, bess any lease incentives receivable, and

+  wvariable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the consolidated entity
wiould have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtaln an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged 1o profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period,

Right-of-use assels are measured at cost comprising the falkowing:

#  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

& any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, and
- any initial direct cogts,

Right-of-use ascets are generally depreciated over the sharter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straighit-
line basis.

Paymients associated with short-1evm leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss, Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less,

{b) Extension option

Extension option is included in a number of property leases across the consolidated entity. These terms are used 10
manimise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension options held are exercisable
only by the consolidated entity and not by the respective lessor,

In determining the lease term, managerment considers all facts and circumstances that ereate an economic incentive 1o

uprcisg an extension option, of not exercise a termimation option, Extension options, or periads after termination
options, are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended, or not terminated.
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

28, Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Software consists of capitalised IT development costs being internally generated intangible assets, These consist of
systern software purchased and customised to the needs of the consolidated entity as well as internally developed
software projects.

Capitalised software is recognised when it is probable that the project (i} will be completed considering its commercial
and technical feasibility, (i) will contribute to future period financial benefits through revenue generation and/or cost
reductions and [iii) its costs can be measured reliably. The expenditure capitalised comprises all directly attributable
costs, incleding costs of materials, services and direct labaur. Capitalisad computer software development is amortised
fram the point at which the asset is ready for use on a straight line basis over its useful life, which varies from 3 to 10
WEars,

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets are tested for impalrment whenever events or changes in cdroumsiances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to resell and
walue in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other asset groups (cash
penerating units].

Carrying
Cost Amortisation value
5'000 5000 $'000
Software
Consolidated 2021 67,958 25,294 47,664
Consolidated 2020 196,418 154,992 41,426
Consalidated Consolidated
2021 2020
5'000 $'000
Carrying value at 1 April 41,426 30,333
Additions 19,449 23,062
Amartisation expense (15,219 [13,969]
Transfer (&) B
Wiite-off 12,574 .
Carrying value at 31 March 42 664 41,426
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Mon-operating assets (continued)
29, Deferred tax assets

Aefer to Note B Incaome tax expense for further information on income tax.

Consofidated Consalidated

2021 2020
5'000 £'000
Deferred tax asset balances comprise temporary differences attributable to:
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
Prowision for impairment of loans and advances 74,970 97,920
Fimancial instruments 3,508 [35,599)
Accrued expenses A2444 ar.000
Sundry items 8,276 7,450
Total amount recognised in the balance sheet 129,496 102,851
Deferred tax liability balances comprise temporary differences attributable
to:
Amaounts recognised in the balanoe sheet
Assats financed under lease 112,405 107,182
Sundry iterms 5,566 5,866
Total amount recognised in the balance sheet 117,871 113,028
Net deferred tax assets/{llabilities) 11,525 (10,177)
Gross deferred tax assets opening balance 102,851 93,409
Movement in temporary differances during the year
Prowision for impairment of leans and advances {22,950] 48,756
Fimancial instrumants 43,405 [45,724)
Accrued expenses 5375 4,769
Sundry items Bis 1641
Gross deferred tax assets closing balance 129,496 102,851
Gross deferred tax liabilities opening balance 113,028 559,031
Mevement in temporary differences during the year
Assets financed under lease 5,243 15,324
Sundry items [300] 11,327)
Gross diferred tax habilities closing balance 117,971 113,028
Net deferred tax assets/{llabilities) 11,525 {10,177)

i1
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Unrecognised items

This section provides information about items that are not recognised in the financial statements as they do not satishy
the recognition criteria but are relevant for the understanding of the financial performance of the consolidated entity.

30. Contingent liabilities

The company, as a member of the Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Uimited G5T Group ["G5T Group™), is jointly and
severally Hable for 100% of the poods and services tax (“GET™) payable by the GST Group. The GST Group had a net GST
payahble as at 31 March 2021 of $91,045,000 (2020: $57,929,000].

The company, in association with other Australian incorporated entities with a common owner, implemented the
income tax consolidation legislation from 1 April 2003 with Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited as the head
entity. Under the income tax consolidation begislation, income tax consolidation entities are jalntly and severally Kable
for the income tax liability of the consolidated ncome tax group wnless an income Lax sharing agreement has been
enfered inta by member entities, At the date of signing this financial report an incame tax sharing agreement has been
eweouted.

31. Commitments

Consolidated Consolidated

0 020
$'000 $'000
Capital commitments
Expenditures contracted for at the end of each reporting perod but not
recognised as liabilities i as follows:
Intangible assals . Lia1

32, Subsequent events

The directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in the report or financial
statements that has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consalidated entity, the results of those
operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in subsequent financial years.
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Other disclosure matters

This section covers other information that is mot directly related to specific line [tems in the financlal statements,
including infermation about subsidiaries, related party transactions, parent entity information and other statutory
disclosures,

33, Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, Rabilities, and resulls of the following subsidiaries in
aceordance with the accounting poliey described in Note 2b:

Dwnership interest
Country of Class of 2021 2020
Name of entity incorporation shares % %
Australian Alliance Automative Finance Pty Limited® Australia O dinary 100 100

* investment valup of 52 has beon rounded to nil. This subsidiary has been granged nelief from the necessity to prepare finandal statements
in accordance with ASIC Instrument 2016785 issued by 1he Austrabian Securities and lnvestment Commission, For further information, refer
taMete 37, The propoetian of Lhe awneribip inlereit 4 adquil to the proparian of woliag power held,

Units owned
2021 2020
Name of trust % %
Southern Cross Teyota 2009-1 Trust** 100 100
King Koala TFA 2012-1 Trust** 100 100

= iyestment vatue of $10 has been rounded (o Sni.

34. Related party transaction

This note shows the extent of related party transactions that are undertaken by the consolidated entity and the impact
they had on the financial performance and position of the consolidated entity,

{a) Entities in the wholly owned group

The ultimate Australian parent entity is Toyota Finance Australia Limited, & wholly ewned subsidiary of Toyola Financial
Services Conporation, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the wltimate parent entity, Toyata Motor Corporation
incorporated in lapan,

{ b} Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 33

{c} Associates

Imvestrments in associates are 581 out in Note 25.

{d) Key management persennel

(i} Key managemeni personnel compensation
Consolidated Consolidated

w021 020
] H
Short-term employee benefits, post-employment, other leng-term and
termination benefits 3,051,971 3,183,110

i3
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Other disclosure matters (continued)

34, Related party transaction [continued)

{d} Key management personnel [continued)

{ii) Equity mstrurnent discloswes relating to key monogement personnel

There were no issued ordinary shares of the ultimate parent entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, lapan under
option 1o key management personnel a5 at 31 Mareh 2021 and 31 March 2020,

{iii} Loans to key monagement persannel
Mo loans to key management personnel were recognisad as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
{e) Transactions and balances with related parties

Transactions and balances with related parties are set out below. These are incheded in the consolidated entity's
consolidated staternent of comprehensive income and consalidated statement of financial position for the period.

Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020
000 £°000

et financing Income
Affiliate finance incame 14,329 17,580
Interest on lease liabilities to affiliated entity (135) E
Credit support fees paid to parent entity |20,803) (17,943)
Debt issuance foes paid to affiliated entity {199] {106]
Debt lssuance fees pald to parent entity {194 (201)
Expenses
Marketing expenses paid to affiliated entity 300 207
Security shored services and licence fee 2,346 143
Assets
Loans and receivables

Deferred finance income from affillates® {20,755) [21,365)
Other assets

Accounts receivable from affiliates® 2429 2.030
Liabilities
Non-interest bearing loans payable to affiliates 40,522 40,786
feeounts payable to affiliates® 179,302 116,675
Lease liabilities to affiliates 4,828 ’
Accrued expenses payable to parent entity®! 10,383 9,596
Accrued expenses payable to alfiliates - R]40

* Moreinterest bearing
I Due to rechisdication, prics year amcunts bave been restabed. This Gid rot affect the labilties presented in the condolidated staterment of financial
posgion

Mo bad debts expense and allowance for doubtful debis were recognised in relation to any receivable due from related
parties as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
35. Parent entity information

TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

Parent Parent
2011 2020
5'000 5'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3471028 1937976
Term deposits 554,000 -
Loans and receivables 16,764,701 17,502,873
Mater vehicles under operating lease 1,597,285 1567432
Derivative financial instruments 154,303 1,562,206
Investment cost in associate 4,284 4,284
intangible assets 42,664 41,426
Property, plant and equipment 23,508 11,849
Right-of-use assets 35,014 42,067
Deferred Lax 55015 9,125 '
Other assets 2,148,232 1,385,201
Total assets 24,904,144 24,067,314
Liabilities
Due 1o banks and ather Ginancial institutions 1,234,558 1,533,155
Bonds and commercial paper 16,851,185 16,136,283
Related party liabilities - 3PY 3,619,525 3827271
Derivative financial instruments TIg.641 211,415
Deferred tax liabilities - 12,577
Other liabilities 496,864 611,642
Contract liabilities 103,909 B9,262
Lease liabiities 41,950 45,087
Taotal Babilities 23,126,632 22,456,692
Net assets 1,777,512 1,600,622
Equity
Contributed equity 120,000 100, O
Resemies - .
Retained earnings 1,657,512 1480,622
Total equity 1,777,512 1,600,622

As at 31 March 2021, current assets and cwrrent liabilities amounted to 510,995,442 000 and 511,155, 340 000
respectively (2020: 59,823,487,000 and 58,869,243, 000 respectively]. Prior year comparatives as at 31 March 2020 have
been restated by reclassifying $592,483,000 and 5271,777,000 from current to non-current assets and labilities,
respectively, The current assets include loans and receivables, net of unearned income and excluding provision for
impairment of loans and receivables.
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
35, Parent entity information (continued)

TOYOTA FINAMCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Parent Parent

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Interest revenue TILT5T T3E,588
Rental income on motor vehicles under oparating lease 406,690 391,487
Fee moame A, 064 43,475
Financing and similar revenue 1,172,511 1,193,550
Interest expense and similar charges [562,926) (434,974)
Depraciation expense on motor vehicles under operating lease (342,433 1324,018)
Financing expense and similar charges {505, ,348) {758,992)
Net financing revenue 267,163 434,558
Other revenue 170,043 169,740
MNet aperating ineoma 437,206 B04, 298
Credit impairment reversal/{loss) 35,721 [18%,127)
Mon-credit impairmaent reversalf[ioss) 13,287 [27,370)
Employee benefits expense [157,206) {164, 036)
Depreciation, write-off and amartisation [32,089| |28,111)
IT and communication expense [35.791) 30,8400
Sales and marketing expense 18,5549] [11.967)
Other expenses (28,099) [36,202)
Share of overhead expenses related to subsidiaries 31,622 28,122
Profit before income tax 256,092 144,767
Income tay expenie (79,202 |34,600)
Prafit after income tax 176,890 110,167

{a) Guarantees entered into by the parent entity
The company has no financial guarantee in relation to securitisation of loans and receivables,

{b) Contingent liabilities of the parent entity
Refer to Note 30 = Contingent liabilities

{c) Contractual commitments by the parent antity
Refer to Note 31 - Commitments
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Other disclosure matters (continued)

36, Auditor's remuneration

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the aeditor of the parent entity, its
rilated practices and non-related audit firms:

Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020
5 5

PricewaterhouseCospers - Australian firm

Audit or review of the financial reports 605,617 652,908
Other auditrelabed work 282,005 382,055
Other assurance senvices 334 451 291,244
Total audit and other assurance services 1,212,073 1,326,207
Tawation 36,576 19,642
Total remuneration 1,259,049 1,345,849
Related practices of PricewaterhousaCoopers-Australian firm [including

owerseas PricewaterhouseCoopers firms)

Other assuranca services 75,775 123,838

37. Deed of cross guarantee

Toyata Finance Australia Limited and Australian Alliance Automotive Finance Pty Limited ane parties to a deed of cross
guarantee under which each company guarantees the debts of the othar, By entering into the deed, the whally owned
entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a finandal report and a directors’ report under ASIC
Instrument 2016/ TES isued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission.

The abowe companies represent a “Closed Group”™ for the purposes of the Legislative Instrument, and as there are no
other parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Toyota Finance Australia Limited, they also represent
the "Extended Closed Group®.

Set out below are the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income of the closed group for the year ended 31 March 2021,
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Other disclosure matters (continued)

37. Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

Consalidated staterment of financial position

Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020
$'oo0 5'000
Astets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,471,028 1,937,976
Term deposits 554,000 -
Loans and receivables 18,052,552 18,035,325
Motor vehicles under operating lease 1,597 285 1,567,432
Derivative financial instruments 254 303 1,562,206
Investrment accounted for using the equity method 95,633 90,145
Imangible assets 42 664 41,426
Property, plant and equiprent 23,508 23,849
Right-of-use assets 35,014 42,067
Deferred tax assets 11,525
Dther assets B27 389 B21,832
Total assets 24,564,907 24,122,258
Liabilities
Due to banks and other financial institutions 1,234,558 1,533,155
Bonds and commercial paper 16,851 185 16,136,283
Related party liabilities - 5PV 3,619,525 3827171
Derivative financlal instruments 778,641 211,415
Deferred tax liabilivies - 10,177
Other liabilities 498406 605,631
Contract liabilities 103,909 89,262
Lease liabilities 41,950 45,087
Total lizbilities 23,128,174 22,458,281
Net assets 1,836,733 1,663,977
Equity
Contributed equity 120,000 120,000
Reserves 3,020 8476
Retained earmings 1,/13.713 1,535,501
Total equity 1,836,733 1,663,977
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
37. Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated Consolidated

2021 2020

$'000 £'000
Interest revenue 751,126 Th5,942
Rental income on mobor vehicles under operating lease 406,600 391,487
Fee income 45,075 43,519
Financing and similar revenue 1,202 894 1,201,048
Interest expanse and similar charges {575, 7B6G) |438,432)
Depreciation expense on motor vehicles under operating bease (342,4232) 324, 018]
Financing expense and similar charges [918,208) {762.450)
Net financing revenue 284 BBE 438,598
Other revenue 170,455 150,671
Met aperating income 455,141 608,269
Credit impairment revarsal/[loss) 35,654 |197.127]
Noa-credit impairment reversal/[loss) 13,287 [27.370]
Employee benefits expense {157, 206) {164,036)
Depreciation, write-off and amortisation (32,089) |28,111)
IT and communication expense (35,791) | 30,840
Sales and marketing expense (8.559) |11.5967]
Other expenses (28,099) [36,202]
Share af net profits of associates accounted for wsing the equity method 10,950 11,153
Profit before income tax 253,288 123,769
Income tax expanse (75,076) [24,955]
Profit attributable to owners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited 178212 58,814
Othar comprehansive incoma
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences an translation of fareign operations (5,456) 1,567
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of Toyeta Finance
Australia Limited 172,756 100,481
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In the directors’ opinion:

fal

(b

fel

the financial statements and notes set out on pages & 1o 74 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
Including:

il] complying with Aceounting Standards, the Covparations Regulatians 2001 and ather mandatany
professional reporting requirements; and

(il Elving a true and falr view of the consofdated entitys financlal position as at 31 Mareh 2021 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable; snd

at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds ta believe that the members of the Extended Closed
Group identified In nate 37 will be able 1o meet any obligations or labilities to which they are, ar may become,
subject by wirtue of the deed of cross guarantes deseribed n nate 37,

Note 2[a) confirms that the financial statements also comply with [nternational Financial Repoeting Standards as
Issued by the International Aceounting Standards Board,

This declaration is made in aceardance with a resalution of the diractors.

For and on behalf of the Board

5. Kadena
Directar

Spdney
15 June 2021
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116 117
2019 2020 2021
— 29,866,547 27,214,594
— 2,792,942 2,932,354
— 2,036,140 2,245,261
— 1,555,009 3,217,806
19,907,100 20,618,888 23,404,547
53,416,405 53,972,363 62,267,140
() 7,028.25 7,454.00 8,370.88
() — 727.47 803.23
() — 720.10 794.67
() 37.3 38.2 37.6
() — 10.0 10.2
) — 8.9 10.7
— 2,398,496 2,727,162
— 2,124,650 4,684,175
— 362,805 2,739,174
3,602,805 4,098,450 5,100,857
371,193 361,907 366,283
) [86,708] [86,596] [80,009]
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( )| 27,597,193 29,379,510 30,225,681 29,929,992
( ) 2,193,825 2,620,429 2,285,465 2,554,607
( ) 1,831,109 2,493,983 1,882,873 2,076,183
( ) 1,966,650 2,393,256 1,936,602 1,866,642
( )| 18,668,953 19,922,076 20,565,210 21,241,851
( )| 48,750,186 50,308,249 51,936,949 52,680,436
() 5,887.88 6,438.65 6,830.92 7,252.17
() 605.47 842.00 650.55 735.61
() 599.22 832.78 645.11 729.50
() 35.9 37.2 37.3 38.1
() 10.6 13.7 9.8 10.4
() 10.0 8.1 10.0 8.8
( ) 3,568,488 4,223,128 3,766,597 3,590,643
( ) 2,969,939 3,660,092 2,697,241 3,150,861
( ) 375,165 449,135 540,839 397,138
( ) 3,149,326 3,219,639 3,706,515 4,412,190
364,445 369,124 370,870 359,542
[ 1 ) [ 86,005] [ 84,731] [ 87,129]| [ 86,219]|
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( 11,365,784 | 12,040,948 | 12,450,275 | 12,590,801 | 13,894,021
( 16,502,168 | 17,209,436 | 17,716,994 | 17,809,246 | 21,198,281
() 3,659.40 3,072.72 4,225.55 4,377.19 4,797.77
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( , ) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 105)
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() 506.96 628.31 657.10 504.25 582.80
() 500.65 620.85 649.89 500.27 576.53
() 68.5 70.0 70.3 70.7 65.5
() 13.8 15.9 15.5 11.4 12.4
() 11.9 10.9 9.9 12.9 14.8
() 41.4 35.0 33.5 43.6 41.2
O 73,875 74,890 74,515 74,132 71,373
] [ 10.700] [ 10.905] [11,122]] [ 10,795]| [ 9,565]|
O 105.0 121.9 119.9 123.8 163.4
( () (114.7) (132.9) (126.2) (114.2) (162.3)
TOPIX)
() 7,156 7,782 7,592 7,929 8,650
() 4,975 5,695 6,079 5,941 6,195
)
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I ndependent auditor’s report

To the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities

(together the Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(a) giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 31 March 2020 and of itsfinancia performance for
the year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Group financial report comprises:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of changesin equity for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
the notes to the consolidated financia statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies
the directors declaration.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

I ndependence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial report in Australia. We have aso fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual financial report for the year ended 31 March 2020, but does not include the financia report and our auditor's
report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsihilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control asthe
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as agoing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
0.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial report as awhole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

A further description of our responsihilities for the audit of the financial report islocated at the Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of
our auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 5 June 2020
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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion
In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities
(together the Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

@ giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 31 March 2021 and of its financial performance
for the year then ended

(b complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Group financialreport comprises:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of changesin equity for the year then ended

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the yearthen ended

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policiesand other
explanatory information

the directors declaration.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards Board' s APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Sandards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethicalresponsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2021, but does not include the financia report and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledgeobtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothingto report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financialreport

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and isfree
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as agoing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do
0.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit ofthe financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as awhole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basisof the financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and Assurance

Standards Board website at: http://www.auash.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of
our auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 15 June 2021
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